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Consolidated Financial Highlights
Central Japan Railway Company and Consoclidated Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Thousands of

MOperating Revenues

US. Dollars (Billions of Yen)
Millions of Yen (Note) e I
2005 2004 2003 2005
1,2004--==--
For the Year:
Operating Revenues ¥1,409,497  ¥1384055  ¥1,383034  $13,172,869 soo
Operating Costs and Expenses 1,061,670 1,039,610 1,021,617 9,922,159 600 ------
Operating Income 347,826 344,445 341,416 3,250,710
300
Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 159,415 125,303 107,963 1,489,859
Net Income 96,087 72,278 49,085 898,009 Ry ‘04 05
Depreciation and Amortization 250,807 225,439 221,078 2,343,990 MNet Income
{Biltions. of Yen)
Capital Expenditures 142,722 167,337 178,503 1,333,850 P13 [
Per Share of Common Stock (in Yen and U.S. Dollars): S
Net Income ¥42,806.63 ¥32,172.54 ¥21,801.76 $400.06 [ PO [
Cash Dividends Applicable to the Year 5,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 51.40 | ]
PLE S
! |
At Year-End: Py m—
Total Assets ¥5,309,491 ¥5473,512 ¥5,578,594 $49,621,411 ]
FY '03 ‘04 05
Total Shareholders’ Equity 850,456 765,970 694,156 7,948,186
. . o MDepreciation and Amottization,
Equity Ratio 16.0 % 14.0% 124 % and Capital Expenditures
{Billions of Yen)
Net Income/Total Assets 1.8 1.3 0.9 250+
Return on Equity 11.9 9.9 7.2
200{----
Note: Fiscal 2005 yen figures have been converted into U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥107=USS$1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2005. 150 4=

1004

E e I B

FY '03 ‘04 ‘05
—m=meses Depraciation and Amartization
=== Capital Expenditures

MTotal Long-Term Debt and

_ Long-Term Payables
{Billions of Yen)

5,000

2,000

1,000

'03.3 '04.3 '05.3




Non-Consolidated Financial Highlights

Central Japan Railway Company

Years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Thousands of

M Operating Revenues

(Billions of Yen) . US. Dollars
1,500 4+ -wmmmmmmremeesameemmemmemmem e nenen Millions of Yen (Note)

2005 2004 2003 2005
1,200 -+

For the Year:

1 Operating Revenues ¥1,149,254  ¥1,127783  ¥1,108344  $10,740,691
5004 Railway 1,140,834 1,118,660 1,100,920 10,662,000
200 Other 8,420 9,123 8,424 78,691
Operating Costs and Expenses 818,276 800,463 784,618 7,647,439
e Fy 03 04 '05 Railway 813,743 795,111 778,807 7,605,074
liNet Income Other 4,533 5,352 5711 42,365
(Bilions of Yen)

B IO Operating Income 330,978 327,319 324,726 3,093,252
Income bhefore Income Taxes 147,671 114,030 96,618 1,380,102
Net Income 90,622 66,977 43,194 846,934
Depreciation and Amortization 237,891 212,239 208,019 2,223,280
Capital Investments 128,567 155,503 169,849 1,201,560

Per Share of Common Stock (in Yen and U.S, Dollars):
> FY '03 ‘04 05 Net Income ¥40,329.38 ¥29,778.01 ¥19,152.65 $376.91
[MDepreciation and Amortization, Cash Dividends Applicable to the Year 5,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 51.40

and Capital Investments
(Billions of Yan)

250 - orermr oo

At Year-End:
Total Assets ' ¥5,146,467 ¥5,302,278 ¥5,376,017 $48,097,822
Total Shareholders’ Equity 836,542 757,382 690,866 7,818,149
Equity Ratio 16.3% 14.3% 12.9%
Net Income/Total Assets 1.7 1.3 0.8
Return on Equity 11.4 9.2 6.4

0- FY '03 04 05 Note: Fiscal 2005 yen figures have been converted into U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥107=USS1. the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2005.

=reacrms DEpreciation and Amorization
===—=x Capital Investments

[MTotal Long-Term Debt and
Long-Term Payables
(Biliions of Yen)

4,000
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A Message from the Management

Business Activities and Performance

The Japanese economy, although beginning to show some signs of brightening,
continued to be under an unclear situation in the fiscal year that ended in March 2005
(FY 2005.3). Given these economic conditions, JR Central prioritized the fundamentals
of railway operation: safe and reliable transportation. The company strove to enhance
its competitive edge and improve service, while also continuing to improve the
operational skills of our personnel and to upgrade various equipment and facilities.

In our Tokaido Shinkansen operation, leveraging the drastically revised timetable in
October 2003, we have delivered timely reinforcements of extra trains in peak periods
and time bands. Another timetable revision was conducted in March 2005 to add the
transportation capacity of “Nozomi” trains and cater to passengers visiting the 2005
World Exposition, Aichi, Japan (Expo 2005 Aichi). In non-railway operations, JR
Nagoya Takashimaya and other businesses at JR Central Towers have enhanced their
sales strength, while retail tenants at railway station buildings have undergone renewal,
thereby further increasing JR Central Group's overall profitability by improving our
services in areas addressing customer needs.

With Tokaido Shinkansen experiencing year-on-year growth in terms of passenger-
kilometers, consolidated operating revenues rose 1.8% from the previous term to
reach ¥1,409.4 billion. Consolidated net income grew 32.9% from the previous term
to ¥96.0 billion, due to a decrease in interest expenses resulting from the reduction in
long-term debt and long-term payables, and the gain on the sale of common stock of
Vodafone K.K. Consequently, net income per share achieved ¥42,806. Consolidated
total long-term debt and long-term payables were reduced by ¥286.7 billion to the
outstanding balance of ¥3,763.6 billion at the end of FY 2005.3.

On a non-consolidated basis, operating revenues rose 1.9% to ¥1,149.2 billion, net
income increased 35.3% to ¥90.6 billion, and net income per share was ¥40,329. Non-
consolidated total long-term debt and long-term payables at the end of FY 2005.3,
were ¥3,665.8 billion, down ¥277.6 billion from a year earlier.

While the interim dividend was at ¥2,500 per share, the company raised the year-end
dividend by ¥500 to ¥3,000 per share.

Fundamental Management Principles

As arailway operator, JR Central is guided by two fundamental management principles.
First, JR Central takes a broad, long-term perspective on our business development,
Since railway projects require massive investments and entail technological
development programs with considerable lead times, the timeframe for recovering
investments is extremely long. Therefore, rather than overemphasizing short-term
profitability, JR Central needs to maintain a long-term strategic stance. Accordingly,
JR Central has been enhancing the competitiveness of the Tokaido Shinkansen
through such transportation capacity improvement projects as the new Shinagawa
Shinkansen Station, and the development and introduction of high-speed rolling stock.
JR Central is also continuing to develop superconducting Maglev technology, which
we expect to employ in the Chuo Shinkansen national project upon its realization.
Tokaido Shinkansen received a drastic timetable revision in October 2003 to
accommodate the opening of the new Shinagawa Shinkansen Station and the
introduction of 270km/h operation to all Shinkansen trains. The revision substantially
enhanced the core elements of the Shinkansen service, such as speed and convenience,
ushering in a new era for Tokaido Shinkansen. Following an additional timetable
revision in March 2005, the “Nozomi” service, which links Tokyo and Shin-Osaka by
approximately 150 minutes, now operates up to eight services per hour (in each direction).
We will continue to promote the introduction of the next-generation Shinkansen
rolling stock Series N700 and new services based on IC technology as part of the

Yoshiyuki Kasai

Chairman

Koo san




Masayuki Matsumoto

President

“Express Reservation” service, thereby further reinforcing Shinkansen’s transportation
capacity and competitive edge.

In the mid- and long-term perspectives, efforts of technological development also
continue on the Superconducting Maglev, with a view to apply the technology to the
Chuo Shinkansen national project. Numerous testing benchmarks have been cleared
in test runs on Yamanashi Maglev Test Line. In March 2005, the Maglev Technological
Practicality Evaluation Committee of the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and
Transport (MLIT) acknowledged that the foundation technology for Superconducting
Maglev was established for practical application. We will continue to strive for
further raising the level of core technologies, such as the superconducting magnet, to
bring Superconducting Maglev to a higher stage of perfection.

JR Central’s second management principle is to provide the highest possible level of
quality in our regular railway services. Ensuring safe and reliable operations, in
particular, is the basic tenet underlying our efforts to maintain and further improve
transportation services. To this end, JR Central has committed itself to investing in
infrastructure and in new technologies, as well as ensuring that our entire work force
receives appropriate technical training.

To maintain and implement stable corporate management into the future, JR Central
must actively develop affiliated business areas to expand its revenue base. Further
business expansion is promoted with the focus on projects that make full use of
railway stations’ locational advantage such as station building development and
promotion of stores on station premises, and other projects that are expected to
generate synergic effects with the railway business. Projects to be implemented
according to this basic policy include the development of JR Central Shin-Yokohama
Station Building (tentative) and the realignment/reinforcement of retail tenants on
station premises to coincide with the renovation of major stations. All business areas
will be revamped to step up JR Central Group’s overall capacity.

The implementation of these measures must be achieved with the early reduction of
long-term debt and long-term payables and subsequent strengthening of our financial
condition. In the framework of JNR reform, JR Central was burdened with long-term
debt and long-term payables totaling ¥5.5 trillion, which represented more than five
times our railway operations revenues at one point. Reducing the long-term debt and
long-term payables at an early stage has been positioned as one of the most important
corporate strategies. Maintaining this policy, we are committed to strengthening our
fiscal standing and consolidating our business foundation.

Furthermore, finding solutions to global environmental problems promises to become
a major corporate priority in the 21st century. In this context, railways will receive
growing recognition as a means of transportation with little environmental impact.
Fully aware of the implications for its own operations, JR Central will promote the
utilization of railway services and contribute to the protection of the environment by
further enhancing its attractiveness as a mode of transportation.

JR Central always endeavors to employ sound management policies to proactively
implement the strategies outlined above. In so doing, we strive to both fulfill our
social responsibilities and maximize shareholder value.

Chairman
Yoshiyuki Kasai

President
Masayuki Matsumoto
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O GDP Passenger-kilometers(JNR)
E: Passenger-kilometers (JR Central)
Sources: GDP: Annual Report on National Accounts

M Tokaido Shinkansen Data

OTotal daily number of trains 295
OAverage daily passenger ridership 374 thousand

OYearly passenger ridership 137 million
OMaximum operating speed 270km/h
OAverage delay from schedule

per departure 0.7 minutes’

* Including delays due to unconiroliable causes,
such as natural disasters

W Tokaido Shinkansen Service (Nozomi, Hikari, Kodama)
Tokyo~Shin-Osaka, Number of

Toko~ShinOsaka,  posorved seat non-reserved

fime required farelsucharge "1 seatcars
Nozomi Approx. 2hr30min - ¥14,050 3
Hikari Approx. 3 hr ¥13,750 5

Kodama  Approx. 4 by ¥13,750 10-2

"1 Non-reserved seats are all ¥13,240  *2 May vary by train

Stops

Nezemi:Shinagawa and Shin-Yokchama siations (or either one of them)
and Nagoya, Kyoto

Hikari:Same as Nozomi, plus a few additional stalions

Kodama:Every station

kaido Shinkansen

Since its inauguration in 1964, 4.2 billion people have used the Tokaido
Shinkansen, Japan's transportation artery linking the three largest metropolitan
areas, Tokyo, Nagoya, and Osaka. The Tokaido Shinkansen has maintained a
flawless record of no passenger fatalities or injuries due to train accidents such
as derailment or collision over 40 years of commercial train operations. The
average delay from schedule per departure was a mere 0.7 minutes in FY
2005.3. These statistics clearly illustrate the impeccable safety and reliability
demonstrated by the Tokaido Shinkansen.

During FY 2005.3, the timetable, drastically revised in October 2003, was utilized to the
full extent to enable a timely increase in extra trains in morning/evening rush hours,
during Year-End/New Year holidays and other periods with high passenger
concentration. In March 2005, the timetable was further revised to operate up to eight
“Nozomi” services per hour. These measures have boosted passenger use of “Nozomi”
in FY 2005.3, increasing the passenger-kilometers by 3.0% to 41,556 million and railway
operations revenues by 2.5% to ¥981.3 billion compared to the previous fiscal year.

Japan’s Principal Transportation Artery

As the principal transportation artery linking Tokyo, Nagoya, and Osaka, Japan’s major
metropolitan areas, the Tokaido Shinkansen has seen its passenger-kilometers increase
concurrent with Japan’s GDP growth. The current operation is based on 295 train
services per day with flexible additions of extra trains, to transport 374 thousand
passengers each day.

October 1, 2003

On October 1, 2003, JR Central celebrated the simultaneous achievements of two long-
standing tasks; the upgrading of all rolling stock to the speed performance of 270km/h
and the completion of the new Shinagawa Shinkansen Station, leading to the drastic
timetable revision of Tokaido Shinkansen.

This revision allowed up to seven “Nozomi” services per hour (in each direction), while
the opening of the Shinagawa Shinkansen Station provided metropolitan passengers with
improved access to Tokaido Shinkansen, thereby significantly tmproving Shinkansen’s
transportation service. These developments were also combined with the introduction of
non-reserved seats and lower express surcharges for reserved seats on “Nozomi” trains.
The result was a particularly solid growth in “Nozomi” passengers, with the passenger
volume of the entire Tokaido Shinkansen service over 12 months following the October
2003 timetable revision edging up 5% from the previous year. In the period from
October 2004 to March 2003, the figure furthermore increased 2% from the previous
year, in reflection of passengers’ strong endorsement to the convenience of the new
timetable.
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March 2005 Timetable Review

The timetable revision in October 2003 increased Tokaido Shinkansen passengers

substantially to cause heavy congestion for some “Nozomi" services in morning and

evening peak hours. There was also a pressing need to boost transportation capacity to

cater to passengers visiting the 2005 World Exposition, Aichi, Japan (Expo 2005 Aichi).

Accordingly, we introduced six trainsets of the Series 700 and revised the Shinkansen

timetable on March 1, 2005, with the following focuses:

DAllowing up to eight “Nozomi" services per hour

@increasing “Nozomi” services mainly in morning/evening peak hours

@Increasing “Nozomi” services that stop at Shinagawa

@Extending fourteen (seven round-trips of ) “Nozomi” services, previously operating
between Tokyo and Shin-Osaka, to the Sanyo Shinkansen section to achieve an approximately
20-minute interval for “Nozomi” running between Tokyo and Shin-Kobe/Okayama

throughout each day.

Next Generation Shinkansen the Series N700

JR Central and JR West are jointly developing the next-generation Shinkansen rolling
stock Series N700. With a maximum speed of 270 km/h for the Tokaido section and 300
km/h for the Sanyo section, the Series N700 will increase the speed on curves by
adopting a body inclining system for the first time in Japan’s Shinkansen history and
improve acceleration performance. In addition, we are aiming at improvement of ride
quality including comfort and quietness, environmental adaptations, and drastic savings
in energy consumption. A prototype trainset has been conducting test runs since April
20035, ahead of the scheduled launch of commercial operations in 2007.

New ATC (Automatic Train Control) System

With the existing Tokaido Shinkansen ATC aboveground equipment due to be renewed
shortly, we are developing the new ATC system utilizing micro-electronic technology to
enhance reliability.

Unlike the existing “multi-step™ brake control system, the new system is “one-step™ brake
control system that ensures smoother “one-step” braking from full speed to full stop.
This improves passenger comfort, facilitates flexible timetable scheduling and raises
system reliability. Rolling stock and ground facilities are currently being upgraded in
preparation for the system’s introduction by the end of FY 2006.3.

Investment in Stations for Further Convenience and Comfort

In order to offer further convenience and comfort at stations, JR Central is improving
passenger-related facilities, such as changing station layouts to make ticket offices more
accessible, upgrading waiting rooms for passengers. and conducting renewal of retail
tenants on station premises. Nagoya, Shin-Osaka and other stations underwent renewal
during FY 20035.3. Passenger facilities are scheduled for, or are presently undergoing,
upgrades at main terminals including Shin-Yokohama, Shizuoka, Hamamatsu and Kyoto.

Expanding “Express Reservation” Services

JR Central is committed to enhancing the convenience of frequent business passengers,
introducing a range of measures including the “Express Reservation” service. The
“Express Reservation” service allows passengers to use their mobile phone or PC to make
or change reservations for Tokaido Shinkansen, and receive the ticket from an automatic
ticket vending machine, rather than having to queue at a ticket office. The service saves

MDaily “Nozomi” departures and passenger volume

180 {Trains / day) (Thousand passengers / day) 160
E Departures |-Fj_
© _ Passenger Volume l——* o 148
| L
120 [ 120
-~ [
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80 o ‘ ! 80
il i
Fg2 '
~ ] N
40 @ ~ © 40
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Notes 1:As of the end of each fiscal year. excluding specially
scheduled trains
2:Average over each fiscal year
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passengers time associated with ticket purchase, so as to reduce the overall time of
Shinkansen travel. Users can also change their reservations as many times as they like,
and use a reserved seat on regular cars at a discount price lower than that of a regular non-
reserved one. It has become established as the most advantageous means of using
Tokaido Shinkansen, with the number of users increasing steadily.

JR Central plans to expand the “Express Reservation” service further. 1t currently covers
Tokaido Shinkansen operations only (Tokyo — Shin-Osaka), but will extend its service
coverage in summer 2006 to Sanyo Shinkansen areas (Tokyo — Hakata). In addition, we
plan to introduce the “Express Reservation” IC card service in FY 2008.3, whereby 1C
technology is used to eliminate the need to obtain paper-based tickets in automatic ticket
vending machines at stations. The expansion of “Express Reservation” service will
continue to consolidate Tokaido Shinkansen’s superiority to other forms of transportation.

Active Marketing Initiatives

JR Central is developing various marketing policies to provide greater ease of use for the
Tokaido Shinkansen.

Enhanced Product Line

JR Central offers a wide range of products, in addition to the “Express Reservation”
service, to deliver convenient passenger access to Tokaido Shinkansen. Repeat users can
purchase “Shinkansen multi-trip tickets” that can be used for either reserved or non-
reserved seats on all the “Nozomi”, “Hikari” and “Kodama” trains. An increasing
range of discount tickets for advanced reservation are also on offer, including “Hayatoku”
tickets that must be purchased at least 7 days in advance, designed for non-business
passengers traveling for sightseeing or other occasions. The “Express Reservation”
members can pick up even a greater discount on “Hikari” services by taking advantage
of the “Express Hayatoku” tickets, which requires booking at least 3 days in advance. To
take maximum advantage of the available transport capacity, the product lineup is being
expanded, offering cheaper prices to encourage the use of early morning “Nozomi”
trains, which have relatively excess capacity at present.

Measures to Stimulate Tourism Demand

JR Central has continued the “Kyoto & Nara Campaign”, introducing Japan’s top tourism
destinations dotted along Tokaido Shinkansen to raise tourism-related railway demands.
The number of people visiting Kyoto by railway is increasing year after year.

“JR Central 50% (Fifty-Plus)” is a membership-based travelers’ service that offers
attractive and reasonably priced tour packages to customers 50 years of age and older.
There are no registration or membership fees. Offering the member-exclusive original
tours to not only members themselves, but also their travel companions regardiess of age
under the same conditions, “JR Central 507 has received registration applications by
larger-than-expected numbers of customers.

During the period of Expo 2005 Aichi (March 25 — September 25, 2005), we also offer
travel packages and discounted round-trip tickets in conjunction with travel agencies to
cater to many Expo visitors traveling from distant cities.
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Conventional Railway
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JR Central operates a network of twelve conventional railway lines, which form a
common network with the Tokaido Shinkansen. These lines have contributed
substantially to the development of communities and the regional economy
around Nagoya and Shizuoka.

In FY 2005.3, our concerted efforts to provide transport services that match the
characteristics of local communities and areas, successfully consolidated local train use in
urban areas. However, with a demand slump for express trains, the annual passenger-
kilometers decreased 0.1% from last year to 8,922 million, while railway operations
revenues sank 1.4% from last year to ¥104.2 billion. Restoration work is currently
underway for the Takayama Line, which is substituted with a bus service in some sections
following typhoon damage in 2004. The entire stretch of the line is scheduled to resume
service in the autumn of 2007.

Development of Conventional Railway

The annual passenger ridership traveling on JR Central’s conventional railway network
has increased by more than 20% since JR Central was established in 1987. This reflects
the success of various measures, which include introducing faster and more modern
rolling stock, increasing the frequency of trains, and installing air conditioning on all
trains. One measure that has proved especially popular is the introduction of “Wide
View” rolling stock on limited express trains. JR Central has synchronized Tokaido
Shinkansen and conventional railway limited express train timetables to create an
integrated network of Shinkansen and Wide View trains. Commuters have benefited from
the increased frequency of local trains during peak-demand morning and evening periods
and from the introduction of expanded rapid-train services that reduce travel times.
Moreover, train intervals have been adjusted to equally spaced departures, in order to
provide timetables that better serve passenger needs.

Aging rolling stocks will be decommissioned and replaced with approximately 200
brandnew ones to further improve our transportation service. The new rolling stocks will
be phased in from the autumn of 2006 onwards. Also as a safety measure, a safety device
will be installed in the driver’s cabin on all conventional railway rolling stock by the end
of FY2008.3.

Infrastructure development is in progress to introduce the IC card service to conventional
railway in Nagoya area and Shizuoka area, to be used in combination with the “Express
Reservation” IC card service for improved passenger convenience. The service is
scheduled for launch in FY 2007.3 in Nagoya area and FY 2008.3 in Shizuoka area.

Delivering Appropriate Transportation Services

The Expo Shuttle offered a direct link between Nagoya Station and Bampaku Yakusa
Station of the Aichi Loop Line during the period of Expo 2005 Aichi from March 25 to
September 25, 2005. The service coincided with the release of the discount Aichi Expo
Round-Trip Pass, which proved popular among Expo visitors.
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Total Capital Satety-Related
Investments Investments

JR Central is constantly devising measures that focus on both facilities and
services to uphold passenger confidence in the safety and reliability of its railway
services. In particular, we are introducing advanced technologies and
strengthening our disaster-response systems.

Initiatives for Securing and Enhancing Safety

Maintaining safe and reliable services is JR Central’s principal obligation. With this in
mind, we continually seek ways to improve our operational systems as well as modernize
our rolling stock and facilities. Our initiatives include employee training and practical
training envisaging various accidents and disasters. To assure further safety
improvements in the future, JR Central is adopting a medium- and long-term perspective
in undertaking technology development projects. JR Central has been aggressive in these
initiatives for securing and enhancing safety since its inception, thereby investing, on
average, approximately 60% of total non-consolidated capital investments in maintaining
and improving the safety and reliability of its operations. Of ¥128.5 billion for total non-
consolidated capital investments in FY 2005.3, JR Central spent ¥89.3 billion on such
safety-related investments.

WwHigh-Speed Multiple nspection Train{T4 trainset)
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Shinkansen
Tokaido Shinkansen secures safety and punctual operations through the use of ATC
(Automatic Train Control) ¢, combined with traffic control systems such as CTC
(Centralized Traffic Control) ¢+ and COMTRAC (COMputer aided TRAffic Control) ¢).
In February 1999, the second General Control Center for Tokaido and Sanyo Shinkansen
was established in Osaka so as to provide an effective backup system controlling train
operations and boost the risk management capability in emergency.
JR Central continues to assure the safety and reliability of its services by conducting
inspections of such structures as tunnels, bridges, and elevated trestles at regular intervals
and when otherwise necessary. Moreover, by developing more suitable, efficient and
effective ways of conducting such inspections, we have been introducing various types of
inspection equipment and systemns. In particular, the new Series 700-based “Doctor
Yellow” multiple inspection train, introduced in September 2001, is capable of testing
Shinkansen’s tracks and electrical facilities while running at the speed of 270km/h.
Furthermore, among JR Central’s measures to protect against natural disasters, JR Central
has introduced the “Earthquake Rapid Alarm System” in 1992 and taken other measures
as prescribed by legislation passed after the Great Hanshin Earthquake to reinforce the
anti-seismic qualities of its structures, thereby maximizing safety in the event of an
earthquake. Anti-quake measures have been stepped up to ensure even greater safety.
New measures include the “Tokaido shinkansen EaRthquake Rapid Alarm System
(TERRA-S)”, completed in August 2005, reducing the amount of time required from
earthquake detection to alarm issuance from 3 to 2 seconds. While accelerating as much
as possible the plan to implement quake-resistant reinforcement of elevated track columns
along the Tokaido Shinkansen, we are also reinforcing rail embankments and adding
additional reinforcement to elevated track columns in track sections especially prone to
strong seismic motion, thereby further strengthening our anti-seismic measures.
JR Central is also devising measures to minimize the impact of other natural disasters on
its railway operations. For example, JR Central regularly conducts practice drills to
prepare employees to appropriately respond to circumstances that may cause trains to
deviate from normal operations. In such circumstances, we follow an established
procedure, immediately making relevant contacts and gathering the necessary information
that allows normal operations to be restored as quickly as possible. In extreme situations
when wind speeds or rainfall exceeds certain levels and safe transportation cannot be
guaranteed, operations are restricted.

During more than 40 years of commercial train operations, the Tokaido Shinkansen has

maintained a flawless record of no passenger fatalities and injuries due to train accidents

such as derailment or collision. In FY 2005.3, Tokaido Shinkansen achieved the average
operation delay of 0.7 minutes per train despite a series of typhoons and other natural
disasters, demonstrating the world’s highest level of safety and punctuality.

*1 ATC (Automatic Train Contrel} is a system that monitors the distance between trains as well as the status of overall
railway traffic. and indicates the appropriate speed to each train’s driver. If this speed is exceeded, the braking system
is automatically activated by ATC.

*2 CTC (Centralized Traffic Control} is a system designed to improve the efficiency of train operations by remotely
controlling railway signals over a wide area and monitoring real-time data on the operating status of trains.

*3 COMTRAC (Computer-Aided Traffic Control) is a Shinkansen control system that allows around-the-clock status
monitoring of all trains in operation from the Tokaido-Sanyo Shinkansen General Control Center, Functions

performed by the system include compiling train route diagrams and managing the train crew and rolling stock
utilization.

i
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Conventional Railway

The operation of trains on conventional railway is controlled from four control centers
located in various places. All information is monitored around the clock, including the
location of trains in operation and station signals.

Facilities for conventional railway have been improved since the launch of JR Central,
including streamlining/upgrading railway crossing facilities, introducing new rolling
stock and adopting CTC (Centralized Traffic Control). The functions of the ATS
(Automatic Train Stop) system have been expanded, with the ATS-ST type (which
automatically and unconditionally applies the emergency brake to a stop signal) having
been installed to all conventional railway lines. In most lines, the system is added with a
speed scanning function for dramatically enhancing safety. As a result, railway operation
accidents on conventional railway have declined by 60% in FY 2005.3 compared to in the
early days following JNR privatization.

In addition, JR Central has enhanced its preparedness for earthquakes and falling debris
through the introduction of a new earthquake data transmission system and falling rock
detectors. As for the maintenance and management of ratlway tracks and electrical
facilities, the use of the “Doctor Tokai” multiple inspection train, introduced in 1999, has
enabled the efficient and early monitoring of facility conditions.

JR Central is currently working toward further enhancing safety measures on conventional
railway. In June 2005, we decided to additionally install ATS-ST with the speed
scanning function at a total of 51 curves, consisting of nine locations required under the
MLIT standard as part of the ministry’s emergency development program, and 42 other
locations voluntarily chosen by JR Central. Approximately 200 new rolling stock will
also be introduced to replace aging cars. They are set to be phased in from the autumn of
2006 onwards to take up commercial operations. In another step to improve safety, the
driver’s cabin of all conventional railway trains will become equipped with an operation
data recorder, emergency train stop device, and emergency protector by the end of FY
2008.3. The use of training simulators is also expanded for improved driver educaiton
and training.
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Technological Development

JR Central is proactively developing new technologies to maintain and expand its
core railway operations, as well as to build a more stable management
foundation capable of responding to structural changes in society. These
initiatives have already produced notable results. One such example is the next-
generation Shinkansen rolling stock Series N700, which is set to commence
commercial operations in 2007. JR Central is also focusing on developing and
conducting tests of the Superconducting Maglev from a long-term perspective.

JR Central Research Facilities

JR Central opened its own R&D facility in Komaki (Aichi Prefecture) in July 2002, to
further strengthen our efforts toward technological development that will support our
future, to enhance our technical capabilities, and to foster technically skilled human
resources. The new research institute is equipped with the latest testing facilities to focus
on “improvement of railway technology” and “challenge to new fields.”

Pursuit of Passenger Comfort

JR Central defines improvement of passenger comfort as the key element in passenger
transport services. Since its opening, our R&D facility in Komaki has used a vehicle
dynamic simulator to research and develop ways of improving passenger comfort. Based
on its findings, the Series N700 rolling stock, currently under development, will further
improve passenger comfort by introducing a body inclining system to maintain ride
quality as well as increase speed on curves, and a high-performance semi-active
suspension to minimize undercarraige vibrations conveyed to passenger compartments.

Development of a “Power Storage System”

In a bid to build a transport system with minimal strain on the global environment, JR
Central has developed and introduced energy-conserving rolling stock, incorporating the
“regenerative brake” and other systems. Currently under development is an “on-board
power storage system”, which uses the new “electric double-layer capacitor” for storing
electricity so as to make more efficient use of regenerative brakes and enhance energy
efficiency of conventional railway trains.

Development of “Photocatalyst Technology”

JR Central is conducting R&D on photocatalyst technology at its Komaki research
facility. When exposed to light, photocatalysts decompose foul odor/stains and make it
easier to remove stains with just a little water. The Series N700 rolling stock, now under
development, will feature smoking rooms that introduce our original photocatalyst device
to reduce tobacco smoke odor, in an effort to further isolate smoking areas from non-
smokiﬁg areas. We have also formulated a special surface coating technology that makes
use of photocatalyst, as part of the effort to develop “glass that always stays clean”.




AYamanashi Maglev Test Line

Superconducting Maglev

JR Central considers the Superconducting Maglev to be suitable for the Chuo Shinkansen
when realized because of its advanced characteristics and high-speed performance. With
this in mind, JR Central has, since April 1997, been conducting test runs on the
Yamanashi Maglev Test Line in cooperation with the Railway Technical Research
Institute. In December 2003 we achieved a speed of 581 km/h, surpassing its own
previously set world maximum speed record of 552 km/h by approximately 30 km/h to
set a new maximum speed record in railway.

In March 2005, the Maglev Technological Practicality Evaluation Committee of the
MLIT acknowledged, after examining the results of past test runs, that the foundation
technology for Superconducting Maglev was established for practical application. The
statement amounts to the ministry’s endorsement that our Superconducting Maglev R&D
has achieved technological criteria for real-life application.

In order to introduce Superconducting Maglev, Japan's cutting-edge technology, JR
Central also displayed a real-life Superconducting Maglev car, offered a visual theater
with the latest video technology, and exhibited component technologies that make up
Superconducting Maglev at Expo 2005 Aichi, held between March 25 and September 25,
2005. Our pavilion attracted approximately 6.9 million visitors.

We will conduct further test runs, including ones carrying passengers, to verify the
technology’s long-term durability, and enhance the level of core technologies such as
superconducting magnet, in an effort to bring Superconducting Maglev to a higher stage
of perfection.

15
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Review of Operations
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JR Central realizes that it must actively expand and diversify its revenue base to
maintain stable operations in the future. As seen in the opening of JR Central Towers
and on-going development of JR Central Shin-Yokohama Station Building (tentative),
we are promoting business expansion into areas that make full use of railway stations’
locational advantage, and areas that are expected to generate synergic effects with
the railway business itself. JR Central will actively run businesses, in cooperation with
affiliated companies, enhancing the collective strength of our business group.

Outlook of Group Businesses

JR Central Group undertakes business in the areas of “Transportation’”, “Merchandise and
Other”’, “Real Estate™, and “Other Services”. Operating revenues of consolidated subsidiaries
totaled ¥385.0 billion (simple calculation) in FY 2005.3.

The “Merchandise and Other” segment manages department stores and provides sales
services for goods and foods in stations and trains, making use of the railway’s ability to
attract customers. The “Real Estate” segment includes property management companies
and other businesses undertaking developments at stations and areas under railway bridges.
The “Other Services” segment includes companies in the hotel and travel agency business.
Among our key future projects is the plan to open the JR Central Shin-Yokohama Station
Building (tentative), which integrates commercial facilities, offices, hotel and other
functions, atop the current Shin-Yokohama Station in 2008. The construction work
commenced in July 2005. A total of approximately ¥40 billion is earmarked for the entire
project, which includes renovation work for the existing Shin-Yokohama Station.
Disused sites of former company housing are actively developed as a way of effectively
utilizing properties owned by JR Central and its group companies. We made steady
progress to develop the Central Square Shizuoka shopping center, set to open in
November 2005, and are undertaking a “community development” project (Nagoya
Central Garden), slated for completion in the spring of 2007, featuring condominium
buildings and commercial facilities.

JR Central is also currently streamlining/revamping retail tenants at station buildings to
coincide with renovation work at station facilities. Commercial facilities at Nagoya and
Shin-Osaka stations underwent renewal and reopened during FY 2005.3. Similar
initiatives will be implemented at other major stations. We established Tokyo Station
Development Co., Ltd. in January 2005, and took over the administration of the Tokyo
Station Ichibangai (First Avenue) shopping street on the Yaesu side of Tokyo Station in April.

JR Central Towers

JR Central Towers, the core project of the JR Central Group’s affiliated businesses
diversification plan, houses rental office space, a department store, a hotel, and other facilities.
JR Central Building Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, manages the office leasing
business in the building complex. Its duties include the leasing of space to office tenants
as well as operation of the parking facility. Since the building offers a space that is
literally “one” with the station, the office portion enjoyed a high average tenancy rate of
nearly 100% in FY 2005.3. In the department store business, JR Tokai Takashimaya Co.,
Ltd., which we co-funded with Takashimaya Co., Ltd., operates the department store JR
Nagoya Takashimaya. Its timely and appropriate merchandizing reviews and the
introduction of a shopper point system are attributed to the company’s revenue growth in
FY 2005.2 for the fifth consecutive year.

In the hotel business, JR Tokai Hotels Co,, Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, operates
Nagoya Marriott Associa Hotel under a franchise agreement with Marriot International
Inc. The hotel maintained a high average occupancy rate (86.4%) in FY 2005.3.

As a result, the combined operating revenues of JR Central Building, JR Tokai Takashimaya
and JR Tokai Hotels were ¥127.2 billion in FY 2005.3 (simple calculations). Once again,
these figures exceeded the previous term. JR Central continues to direct its energies to
further expanding each of JR Central Towers’ business that is gradually taking root.

17
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JR Central's greatest responsibility is to provide safe and reliable services for the
Tokaido Shinkansen linking Tokyo, Nagoya, and Osaka, as well as the
conventional railway centered on the Nagoya and Shizuoka areas. Furthermore,
we have been working to promote the usage of railway while improving its
characteristics of little burden on the global environment, as well as promoting
barrier-free facilities.

Contribution to Global Environment Conservation

Railways have a minimal impact on the environment. For example, on the Tokyo-Osaka
corridor, CO: emission (per conveyance unit) attributable to the Series 700 rolling stock is
estimated to be around one-tenth that of aircraft (B747-400). This illustrates the
overwhelming advantage of railways as an environment-friendly transportation mode.

JR Central makes its contribution to the conservation of the global environment through
further enhancing the environmentally-beneficial characteristics of railways, and making
railway transportation services even more attractive to encourage passenger use.

Improving the Energy Efficiency of Rolling Stock

As an environment-conscious company, JR Central is introducing new energy-efficient
rolling stock in earnest. Especially for the Shinkansen, we have unified all of our rolling
stock into the high-speed / low-energy consumption type -- either the Series 700 or the
Series 300 in the October 2003 timetable revision. We will continue to pursue even
greater energy conservation in the Series N700 rolling stock. As for conventional
railway, energy-efficient trains already account for approximately 70%. Introduction of
around 200 new rolling stock is expected to bring the ratio of energy-efficient trains to
above 80% in FY2007.3. Our aggressive introduction of energy-efficient rolling stock
and its effects have received high praise, including a commendation from the Minister of
Environment in 2003.

Other Environment Conservation Measures

JR Central is also accelerating the introduction of alternative energies and energy-
efficient systems that contribute to environmental conservation. As part of our effort, we
have installed solar photovoltaic power generation systems on a trial basis at the Tokaido
Shinkansen’s Kyoto Station and at our new R&D facilities in Komaki, Aichi Prefecture.
Also, JR Central Towers incorporates a co-generation system that makes effective use of
exhaust heat, generated during power generation, in air conditioning for surrounding
areas, thereby improving energy efficiency and reducing CO: emissions. Substations for
conventional railway are in the process of introducing a type of rectifier that uses pure
water, which has almost zero impact on the global environment, as its coolant, so as to
substantially cut back on the use of alternative chlorofluorocarbon(CFC) that has some
greenhouse gas effects.

Contribution to Community Development

Railway stations have a particular function as a gateway to many communities. In the
attempt to enhance this function, JR Central is cooperating with the requests of local
governments to improve station buildings, develop plazas in front of stations, and
facilitate railway elevation projects, thereby contributing to the development of
communities.

We are also steadily installing elevators and escalators in stations and wheelchair spaces
in trains so that all passengers, including persons with disabilities and the elderly, can use
railway with peace of mind. In view of the purport of the Barrier-Free Transportation
Law, which went into effect in 2000, priority is given to stations with large passenger
traffic in giving facility upgrading, delivering a safe and secure transportation
environment to all of our passengers.
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International Exchange

JR Central undertakes a wide range of international business operations, such as gathering
up-to-date railway information from around the world via the company’s own network of
overseas offices (Washington, London, Sydney), participating in international
conferences to exchange technological and management information with railway
operators in the world, and issuing press releases to overseas interests as part of our PR
activities,

Being a company of a significant social and public mission, we also participate in
technological cooperation in the railway area in response to government request, and
contribute to bi-directional human resource development through accepting interns from
overseas universities and international organizations.

In November 2004, in commemoration of the 40th anniversary of Tokaido Shinkansen,
JR Central and JR West jointly organized the International High-Speed Railway
Conference 2004, in order to appeal the environmental and energy-efficient superiority of
high-speed railways through discussions on global environmental issues.

As the pioneer of high-speed railway with the world longest history in the field, we will
strive to attain deeper understanding on our operations in the international community
through PR activities and information exchange with railway operators around the world.
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Questions and Answers

@ What is the forecast for performance in FY 2006.3?

In the Tokaido Shinkansen operation, we took a prudential approach in handling
transportation demand during the 2005 World Exposition, Aichi, Japan (Expo 2005
Aichi) from March 25 to September 25, 2005, actively marketing special tickets and other
products to increase revenues on this opportunity. As for conventional railway, Expo
Shuttle direct service was operated to the Expo site. During the first half of the fiscal
year, these measures are expected to bring increased transportation volume and a
subsequent increase in railway operations revenues to JR Central, while giving increased
sales of goods, hospitality services, etc. to consolidated subsidiaries. Although the end of
Expo may negatively affect the business of JR Central in the second half, we forecast a
revenue increase for the whole of FY 2006.3, and project consolidated operating revenues
of ¥1,413.0 billion.

Ordinary income is projected to reach ¥163.1 billion thanks to profit increase through the
reduction of JR Central’s depreciation expenses and a decrease in interest expenses
resulting from the reduction of long-term debt and long-term payables.

Efforts to secure revenues and reduce expenses are expected to maintain the net income
for FY 2006.3 at around ¥96.4 billion, around the same level as the previous fiscal year,
when the company received the gain on the sales of common stock of Vodafone K.K.

0 What is your opinion of the Tokaido Shinkansen’s superiority
1 over the airline industry?

Although continued discount campaigns by airline companies for routes competing
with the Shinkansen have increased air transportation volume in recent years,
Shinkansen maintains 80% share in the high-volume Tokyo ~ Osaka route. In addition,
Shinkansen’s transportation services have dramatically improved since the drastic
timetable revision in October 2003. We will continue to implement measures for
boosting our competitive edge, such as introducing the next-generation rolling stock
Series N700 and utilizing IC card technology in the “Express Reservation” service.
Shinkansen is superior to airlines in the following aspects:

Safety

Because of safety measures carried out on equipment and services, such as the
comprehensive training of employees and the introduction of the train control system
using most sophisticated electronic technologies, the Tokaido Shinkansen has maintained
a flawless record of no passenger fatalities or injuries due to train accidents such as
derailment or collision during more than 40 years of commercial train operations. This
record demonstrates the consistency and thoroughness of our measures to ensure safety.

Punctuality

In FY 2005.3, the average delay from schedule per departure was a mere 0.7 minutes. The
Tokaido Shinkansen boasts high punctuality, making it especially relied upon among
business travelers.

MFiscal 2006 Forecasts

(Billions of Yen)
Consclidated  (2006/2005)
Operating revenues 1,413 (100.2%)
Operating income 353 (101.6%)
Netincome 96 (100.3%)
Capital investments 176 (119.7%)

Long-term debt reduction

Approximately 2,170

Non-Consolidated  (2006/2005)
Operating revenues 1,151 (100.2%)
Operating income 336 (101.7%)
Net income 0 (100.1%)
Capital investments 148 (115.1%)

Long-term debt reduction

Approximately 2,100
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Comfort

We consistently endeavor to provide passengers with the most comfortable traveling
environment that accurately responds to the needs of the times. Through the introduction
of the Series 700 rolling stock, we have achieved new levels of riding comfort, including
enhanced noise suppression. Also, we constantly are modernizing stations and installing
new facilities such as elevators and escalators.

High Speeds

“Nozomi” services connect the city centers of Tokyo and Osaka approximately in 150
minutes. This is virtually the same time that this route takes by air, if one includes the
time necessary to travel between airports and city centers, as well as check-in and transit
times.

Frequency and Capacity

Considering that 295 regular trains are operated daily and that an average trainset has a
seating capacity of around 1,300, the capacity advantage of Tokaido Shinkansen over
airlines is substantial. Also, a maximum of eight “Nozomi” services are operated every
hour for the Tokyo — Osaka route, which provides passengers with a high-volume and
high-frequency travel option, available at any time to suit their schedule. The “Express
Reservation” service allows users to change their reservations online as many times as
they like without having to physically visit a ticket office, so that they can take maximum
advantage of the overwhelmingly frequent Tokaidoe Shinkansen services.

@ What is the long-term demand outlook for passenger railway
services?

Taking a medium- to long-term perspective, we foresee a continuation of such social

trends as increasing leisure time, a growing number of senior citizens, and a
decreasing number of children, all of which will affect demand for our passenger railway
services. However, we believe that passenger demand of the Tokaido Shinkansen will
steadily increase in line with Japan’s expected future economic development because a
large part of the demand is for business use. We will continue to appropriately respond to
changes in social trends by raising our service standards to enhance our revenue
capabilities.
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Questions and Answers

a Please describe JR Central’s IT-related initiatives.

Using IT applications, JR Central is working to innovate its railway service and

develop new businesses. For the Tokaido Shinkansen, travelers are able to directly
arrange or change their railway reservations online via web browser-equipped mobile
telephone or personal computer with the “Express Reservation” service. A closer look at
the trends in usage reveals that it is indeed well-received by business users. In a bid to
enhance service convenience even further, we are working toward introducing a service,
by FY 2008.3, that uses IC card and newly-developed ticket gates to eliminate the need to
obtain a paper-based ticket. A verification test was conducted in 2005. Preparation is
also underway to launch the IC card service for conventional railway by around FY
2007.3.
JR Central introduced a host of new technologies, equipment and systems, and undertook
a comprehensive reassessment of its overall operations. Following this plan, in FY 2002.3
we embarked on a new five-year plan, whereby we are promoting systematization, labor-
saving, and other measures with the aim of substantively transforming the Company’s
operating systems. Specific planned measures include the introduction of new IT systems
and labor-saving technological innovations. For example, we have introduced IT
compatible control and management systems for inspecting electric power facilities,
tracks, and rolling stock that can instantaneously process information regarding
maintenance. The Shinkansen Multiple Inspection Train, “Doctor Yellow,” is able to
inspect track and electric power facilities while traveling at speeds of up to 270 km/h. JR
Central is thus striving to ensure safe and stable Shinkansen operations.

@ Where does the Chuo Shinkansen stand in JR Central’s
management vision?

A The Chuo Shinkansen is one of the basic projected routes indicated as a “Shinkansen

line that merits construction,” according to Article 4 of the Nationwide Shinkansen
Railway Development Law. We believe JR Central should concurrently manage this
project along with Tokaido Shinkansen, because it comes under the management
responsibility of JR Central, which handles passenger traffic between the Tokyo and
Osaka metropolitan areas, and due to the anticipated mass switch of passengers from
Tokaido Shinkansen to Chuo Shinkansen upon completion. Based on this belief, we
accepted the Transport Minister’s designation in February 1990 as a corporate entity to
conduct relevant research for the project. Accordingly, JR Central and the Japan Railway
Construction, Transport and Technology Agency are conducting “topographical and
geological” assessment according to Article 5 of the said Law. JR Central considers that
a pre-condition for its participation in this project will be to have reasonable assurance
that the Chuo Shinkansen and Tokaido Shinkansen services will complement one another
and operate profitably as a unified and sound business enterprise.

WPlanned Route of the Chuo Shinkansen

i

Linear Chuo Express Canstruction Promotion Federation
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@ What is the purposes of the Yamanashi Maglev Test Line?
What is the plan for future tests?

Based on the belief that Chuo Shinkansen, if eventuated, should embrace

Superconducting Maglev for its technological excellence and speed, JR Central has
been actively involved in the R&D of Superconducting Maglev technology, such as
practical operation tests at the Yamanashi Maglev Test Line, to be the future management
entity of Chuo Shinkansen.
In practical operation tests, we set the distance of continuous operation at 2,876km in November
2003, which is double the average daily operation distance of Shinkansen rolling stock
owned by JR Central, and achieved the world speed record of 581km/h in manned
operation in December of the same year. The speed has been officially recognized by the
publisher of the Guinness Book of Records as the highest speed attained by a railway. On
March 11, 2005, the Maglev Technological Practicality Evaluation Committee of the
MLIT acknowledged that the foundation technology for Superconducting Maglev was
established for practical application. The project enters a new phase in FY 2006.3,
conducting further test runs for approximately five years to verify the train’s long-term
durability. Efforts will also continue to raise the level of core technologies, such as the
superconducting magnet, to bring Superconducting Maglev to a higher stage of
perfection.
Following confirmation with MLIT on the concept of our consolidated management on
both Tokaido and Chuo Shinkansen, we have projected special investment budget totaling
¥196.5 billion (including the consumption tax) from the onset of the project, and have
outlaid ¥166.3 billion by the end of FY 2005.3.

W History of the Yamanashi Maglev Test Line

1990 Construction commenced on the new Yamanashi Maglev Test Line
1997 Test runs commenced (recorded the maximum design speed of 550 km/h)
1999 November 16 Passing at a relative speed of 1,003 km/h was conducted

The practicality for high speed mass transportation system using Superconducting Maglev technologies was confirmed by the

2000 March 9 .
government committee

2002 July 25 New-model! trainset running tests started
2003  November 7 One-day test runs attained a distance of 2,876 km

December 2 Manned speed record of 581 km/h was attained (world speed record for railways})
2004 October 28 The total distance covered in test runs exceeded 400,000 km

November 16 Passing at a relative speed of 1,026km/h was conducted

The Maglev Technological Practicality Evaluation Commitiee acknowledged that the foundation technology for Superconducting

2005 March 11 Maglev was established for practical application
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Questions and Answers

Q | What steps are being taken to reduce total long-term debt and
i long-term payables?

Upon the break-up and privatization of JNR, JR Central, along with the other JR
companies, were given the responsibility of disposing of a portion of the long-term
liabilities of the predecessor, JNR. The portion of the debt taken on by each company was
based on its revenue potential as determined by the national government. For JR Central,
as a result of the abolishment of the Shinkansen leasing system and transfer of the
Shinkansen assets to the company in FY 1992.3, the amount of allotted long-term debt
and long-term payables was ¥5.5 trillion, more than five times its annual ratlway
operations revenues.

We have made the disposal of this total long-term debt and long-term payables one of the
most important corporate strategies in order to improve our balance sheet. Since the end
of FY 1992.3, the year during which the Shinkansen leasing system was dissolved, JR
Central has reduced its long-term debt and long-term payables by ¥1,790.4 billion, and
the total consolidated long-term debt and long-term payables for the company at the end
of FY 2005.3 was ¥3,763.6 billion (of which JR Central accounts for ¥3,665.8 billion).
We will continue to boost our earnings capabilities, improve the efficiency of capital
expenditure, and realize more attractive financing possibilities. By taking these steps, we
will increase cash flow to reduce the total long-term debt and long-term payables further
and consequently reinforce the financial backbone of the company.

Please outline the segment-by-segment results for FY 2005.3.

al
A Transportation

In the Tokaido Shinkansen operation, we utilized the drastically revised timetable in
October 2003 to facilitate extra trains in morning/evening rush hours and other periods of
passenger concentration such as the Year-End/New Year holiday season. The timetable
was further revised in March 2005 to operate up to eight “Nozomi” services per hour in
order to boost our transportation capacity. In an effort to boost passenger accessibility to
“Nozomi”, we have also increased the number of “Nozomi” services that stop at
Shinagawa, and provided more “Nozomi” services for the direct operations covering both
the Tokaido and Sanyo sections of the Shinkansen service. These moves have positively
affected passenger use of “Nozomi”, to increase the overall passenger-kilometers by
3.0%.
On conventional railway, concerted efforts to deliver transprotation services suitable to
local characteristics, have consolidated passenger use of local trains in urban areas. In
March 2005, Expo Shuttle began offering a direct link between Nagoya Station and
Bampaku Yakusa Station of the Aichi Loop Line for passengers visiting Expo 2005
Aichi. However, a decline in passenger use of express trains has brought the overall
passenger-kilometers down by a marginal 0.1% from the previous fiscal year.
On the other hand, in terms of sales, we have continued to work on expanding the
“Express Reservation” membership, and started accepting credit card payments at station
ticket offices in April 2004 to enhance passenger convenience in ticket purchasing.
Efforts to raise fresh tourism-related demand have been launched, enhancing the service
lineup for the “JR Central 50%” membership-based travelers’ service, which targets




passengers 50 years of age and older, and actively marketing discount tickets for
advanced reservations for Shinkansen to promote services and routes with relatively
excess capacity. We have also introduced and marketed round-trip ticket packages for
Expo 2005 Aichi and the Nagoya—Toyohashi route, to offer improved convenience for
passengers using Shinkansen in combination with conventional railway.

As a result, operating revenue increased 2.0% over the previous term to ¥1,148.2 billion,
while operating income rose 1.0% over the previous term to ¥327.1 billion.

Merchandise and Other

In the merchandise and other segment, JR Nagoya Takashimaya received a timely review
of its merchandizing in line with customer needs, and introduced a new point-system
customer loyalty program so as to reinforce the store’s sales capacity. The renewal and
fresh addition of retail tenants at station buildings, coninciding with renovation work,
have also contributed to increase the operating revenues by 1.3% from the previous fiscal
year to ¥178.5 billion, and raise operating income by 4.2% from the previous fiscal year
to ¥5.5 billion.

Real Estate

In the real estate segment, the “Cuisine Marche Eki” commercial complex was opened on
the Hirokoji side of Nagoya Station as a way of effectively utilizing the locational
advantage of train stations and expanding the scope of station users. We have also
renewed and newly added commercial tenants at the Central Concourse of Nagoya
Station, Shin-Osaka Station and the restaurant section of JR Central Towers.

As for the development of former company housing, steady progress has been made to
develop the Central Square Shizuoka shopping center (scheduled to open in the autumn of
this year) and a mainly-residential complex in Nagoya (planned to complete in the spring
of 2007). Preparatory work prior to construction is proceeding for the new JR Central
Shin-Yokohama Station Building (tentative).

Tokyo Station Development Co., Ltd. was established in January this year to take over
the administration of the Tokyo Station Ichibangai (First Avenue) shopping street on the
Yaesu side of Tokyo Station in April.

As a result, operating revenue increased 0.4% over the previous term to ¥55.7 billion,
while operating income rose 5.3% over the previous term to ¥12.8 billion.

Other Service

In the hotel business, a new “spa wing” has been built at Hotel Associa Takayama Resort
to add charm. In the travel agency business, we actively marketed a range of attractive
packages to “JR Central 50% " members, and introduced/marketed new products that
incorporate “Hikari” and “Kedama” services with excess transportation capacity.
However, the decline in the volume of system-development contracts from JR Central to
our IT system-related subsidiary brought the operating revenues down by 1.0% from the
previous fiscal year to ¥138.2 billion. Increased expenses, allocated to reinforce sales
capacity of some subsidiaries, have reduced the operating income by 27.1% from the
previous fiscal year to ¥2.2 billion,

25




26

Yoshiyuki Kasai

Masayuki Matsumoto Masataka Ishizuka
President Vice President

Board of Directors and Corporate Auditors

Chairman
Yoshiyuki Kasai*

President
Masayuki Matsumoto*

Vice Presidents
Masataka Ishizuka*
Tsuneo Hara*
Toshiaki Araya*
Yoshiomi Yamada*

Senior Executive Directors
Akihiro Amaya
Akio Seki

Executive Directors
Koushi Akutsu
Takeshi Tategami
Takao Innami
Toyonori Noda

Directors

Mitsuru Nakamura
Kouei Tsuge
Masayuki Kono
Shin Kaneko

Haruo Goto
Naotoshi Yoshikawa
Fujio Cho

Shunichi Kodama
Kenji Koroyasu

Corporate Anditors
Tadahiko Nakamura
Mitsuhiko Koga
Hironori Aihara
Ikuo Murakami
Toshitaka Hayakawa

*Representative Director

Tsuneo Hara
Vice President

(As of the end of August, 2005)

Toshiaki Araya Yoshiomi Yamada
Vice President Vice President

Corporate Officers

Corporate Executive Officers
Akira Nakagawa
Toshiaki Doi

Corporate Officers
Takashi Ono
Tsutomu Morimura
Junichi Hirasawa
Hiroshi Nakashima
Osamn Nakayama
Masaki Seki

Teruo Kachi
Kazuhiro Yoshikawa
Kazumasa Ishizu
Kaoru Umemoto
Akira Sugimoto




(As of the end of August, 2005)

Board ot Dwectors ‘
I
I

Chairman

1

1t
|
o i e — L R I

___President

I
L

T Secretarial Department

i
h

‘—-w Corporate Planning D|V|s:on i

" | General Technology Division <

o

- Supervision De artm'em'
F il
?:—ﬁ Transportation and Marke Marketing Depariment 1

i

agRoIIing Stock Departmenti,}

\ ‘ Engmeenng Department i

!
%} Audit Department |

i il
x‘ Conventional Lines Operations Division ;h

‘ Pubhc Relatlons Department ‘

“ Corporate Aud{toré ’ ‘
U
J _—

1Board of Corporate Auditors

- Administration Department

=1 Legal Affairs Department
o

= Personnel Department ‘

==/ Finance Department | ;

~——| Shizuoka Branch Office _

| . - ]
=\ Mie Regional Office  ;

il |

w[—hda Reglonal Ofﬂce ;,

r—_Planning Department T‘
u

== Supervision Department “

=l T(anspma ion and Marketing Depanmem

” i R . | |
:ﬁ Property Management Depan’memj% == Shinkansen Operations Division

ﬁ Marketing Division i

1——\ Busmess Promotlon DI\/ISIOn ‘

‘:; Construction Department ‘

:‘ Transportation Safety Department :

r——~“ QOverseas Offices Washington, London, Sydney

‘~\ Employee Training Centers

—— JR Tokai General Hospital

= Health Care Center

e Administration Management Center

%&Rolling Stock Departmentj\fi

Tracks and Slructures DepanmentJ‘

I
-

| Electncal Engmeermg Department ”

——_ Kansai Branch Offce_|

27




(As of the end of August, 2005)

Segment Company Name (Il\)/?iilclji-;?lscjfp;g) Shar?i;:)ldmg Business Activities
JR Tokai Bus Company 1,747 100.0 Bus services
Transportation  JR Tokai Logistics Company 300 90.0 Logistics business
Tokai Transport Service Company 295 100.0 Railway business
JR Tokai Takashimaya Co., Ltd. 10,000 59.2 Department store operations
JR-Central Passengers Co., Ltd. 998 100.0 5’3}?31::35 Z;gr?égtzislaslzlses
Merchandise
and Tokai Kiosk Company 700 90.0  Wholesale and retail sales
Other JR Tokai Food Service Co., Ltd. 295 51.6 Food and beverage sales
JR Tokai Corporation 100 70.0 Wholesale and retail sales
JR Central Building Co., Ltd. 45,000 100.0  Real estate leasing
JR Tokai Real Estate Co., Ltd. 16,500 100.0  Real estate leasing and sales
Toyohashi Station Building Co., Ltd. 1,880 525 Real estate leasing
Shin-Yokohama Station Development Co., Ltd. 1,804 100.0 Real estate leasing
Nagoya Terminal Station Building Co., Ltd. 900 52.2 Real estate leasing
Real Estate  Tokyo Station Development Co., Ltd. 750 100.0 Real estate leasing
Shizuoka Terminal Development Co., Ltd. 624 59.5 Real estate leasing
Hamamatsu Terminal Development Co., Ltd. 600 76.8 Real estate leasing
Nagoya Station Area Development Corporation 480 100.0 Real estate leasing
JR Development and Management Corporation of Shizuoka 363 100.0 Real estate leasing
JR Development and Management Corporation of Kansai 30 100.0 Real estate leasing
JR Tokai Hotels Co., Ltd. 14,000 100.0 Hotel business
Shizuoka Terminal Hotel Co., Ltd. 2,120 76.6 Hotel business
Nagoya Terminal Hotel Co., Ltd. 1,850 75.3 Hotel business
JR Tokai Tours 490 70.0 Travel agency services
JR Tokai Agency Co., Ltd. 61 90.0 Advertising
Sgrtxﬁech JR Tokai Construction Co., Ltd. 300 100.0 Construction
Chuoh Linen Supply Co., Ltd. 150 78.0 Linen supply services
JR Tokai Information Systems Company 100 100.0 gz:;:gng%gg;ggsgf 2;:[21
The Japan Mechanised Works and Maintenance of Way Co., Ltd. 100 72.5 Track maintenance
Tokai Rolling Stock & Machinery Co., Ltd. 80 60.5  Rolline stock and machinery
JR Central Consultants Company 50 100.0 Construction consulting business

Note:Two affiliated companies, Shinsei Technos Co., Ltd. and Railway Information Systems Co., Ltd., are accounted for by the equity method.
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Consolidated Financial Review

Income Analysis

The Japanese economy, although beginning to show some signs of brightening, continued to be under an unclear situation
in FY 2005.3. Given these economic conditions, JR Central prioritized the fundamentals of railway operation: safe
and reliable transportation. The company strove to enhance its competitive edge and improve service, while also
continuing to improve the operational skills of our personnel and to upgrade various equipment and facilities.

In our Tokaido Shinkansen operation, leveraging the drastically revised timetable in October 2003, we have delivered
timely reinforcements of extra trains in peak periods and time bands. Another timetable revision was conducted in
March 2005 to add the transportation capacity of “Nozomi” trains and cater to passengers visiting the 2005 World
Exposition, Aichi, Japan (Expo 2005 Aichi).

In non-railway operations, JR Nagoya Takashimaya and other businesses at JR Central Towers have enhanced their
sales strength, while retail tenants at railway station buildings have undergone renewal, thereby further increasing JR
Central Group's overall profitability by improving our services in areas addressing customer needs.

As a result, operating revenues increased 1.8% to ¥1,409.4 billion, and operating income increased 1.0% to
¥347 8billion.

Net income grew 32.9% from the previous term to ¥96.0 billion, due to a decrease in interest expenses resulting from
the reduction in long-term debt and long-term payables, and the gain on the sale of common stock of Vodafone K.K.

Segment Results

Transportation

In the Tokaido Shinkansen operation, we utilized the drastically revised timetable in October 2003 to facilitate extra
trains in morning/evening rush hours and other periods of passenger concentration such as the Year-End/New Year
holiday season. The timetable was further revised in March 2005 to operate up to eight “Nozomi” services per hour
in order to boost our transportation capacity. In an effort to boost passenger accessibility to “Nozomi”, we have also
increased the number of “Nozomi” services that stop at Shinagawa, and provided more “Nozomi” services for the
direct operations covering both the Tokaido and Sanyo sections of the Shinkansen service. These moves have
positively affected passenger use of “Nozomi”, to increase the overall passenger-kilometers by 3.0%.

On conventional railway, concerted efforts to deliver transprotation services suitable to local characteristics, have
consolidated passenger use of local trains in urban areas. In March 2005, Expo Shuttle began offering a direct link
between Nagoya Station and Bampaku Yakusa Station of the Aichi Loop Line for passengers visiting Expo 2005
Aichi. However, a decline in passenger use of express trains has brought the overall passenger-kilometers down by a
marginal 0.1% from the previous fiscal year.

On the other hand, in terms of sales, we have continued to work on expanding the “Express Reservation”
membership, and started accepting credit card payments at station ticket offices in April 2004 to enhance passenger
convenience in ticket purchasing. Efforts to raise fresh tourism-related demand have been launched, enhancing the
service lineup for the “JR Central 50% ” membership-based travelers’ service, which targets passengers 50 years of
age and older, and actively marketing discount tickets for advanced reservations for Shinkansen to promote services
and routes with relatively excess capacity. We have also introduced and marketed round-trip ticket packages for
Expo 2005 Aichi and the Nagoya — Toyohashi route, to offer improved convenience for passengers using Shinkansen
in combination with conventional railway.

As a result, operating revenues increased 2.0% over the previous term to ¥1,148.2 billion, while operating income
rose 1.0% over the previous term to ¥327.1 billion.

Merchandise and Other

In the merchandise and other segment, JR Nagoya Takashimaya received a timely review of its merchandizing in line
with customer needs and introduced a new point-system customer loyalty program so as to reinforce the store’s sales
capacity. The renewal and fresh addition of retail tenants at station buildings, coninciding with renovation work, have
also contributed to increase the operating revenues by 1.3% from the previous fiscal year to ¥178.5 billion, and raise




operating income by 4.2% from the previous fiscal year to ¥5.5 billion.operating profit by 4.2% from the previous
fiscal year to ¥5.5 billion.

Real Estate

In the real estate segment, the “Cuisine Marche Eki” commercial complex was opened on the Hirokoji side of Nagoya
Station as a way of effectively utilizing the locational advantage of train stations and expanding the scope of station
users. We have also renewed and newly added commercial tenants at the Central Concourse of Nagoya Station, Shin-
Osaka Station and the restaurant section of JR Central Towers.

As for the development of former company housing, steady progress has been made to develop the Central Square
Shizuoka shopping center (scheduled to open in the autumn of this year) and a mainly-residential complex in Nagoya
(planned to complete in the spring of 2007). Preparatory work prior to construction is proceeding for the new JR
Central Shin-Yokohama Station Building (tentative).

Tokyo Station Development Co., Ltd. was established in January this year to take over the administration of the
Tokyo Station Ichibangai (First Avenue) shopping street on the Yaesu side of Tokyo Station in April.

As a result, operating revenue increased 0.4% over the previous term to ¥55.7 billion, while operating income rose
5.3% over the previous term to ¥12.8 billion.

Other Service

In the hotel business, a new “‘spa wing” has been built at Hotel Associa Takayama Resort to add charm. In the travel
agency business, we actively marketed a range of attractive packages to JR Central 50 members, and introduced/
marketed new products that incorporate “Hikari” and “Kodama” services with excess transportation capacity.
However, the decline in the volume of system-development contracts from JR Central to our IT system-related
subsidiary brought the operating revenues down by 1.0% from the previous fiscal year to ¥138.2 billion. Increased
expenses, allocated to reinforce sales capacity of some subsidiaries, have reduced the operating income by 27.1%
from the previous fiscal year to ¥2.2 billion.

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled ¥422.7 billion, up ¥52.7 billion from the previous term. This is due
to an increase in operating revenues resulted from an increase in passenger-kilometers of Tokaido Shinkansen, a
decrease in interest expenses resulted from the reduction of long-term debt and payables, and so on.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥97.6 billion, down ¥53.2 billion from the previous term, owing to
factors such as the completion of the capital investment for major improvements of the Tokaido Shinkansen service in
October 2003 and the gain on the sale of common stock of Vodafone K.K.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥326.6 billion, up ¥109.3 billion from the previous term. This is due
to the debt repayment of ¥410.3 billion, up ¥132.2 billion from the previous term, while proceeds from long-term debt
increased ¥41.6 billion from a year earlier.

As aresult, cash and cash equivalents at fiscal year-end totaled ¥78.4 billion, down ¥1.0 billion from a year earlier.

Financial Position

Efforts toward reducing long-term debt and long-term payables, which remain as one of the most important corporate
strategies, resulted in a ¥286.7 billion reduction of long-term debt and long-term payables in this fiscal year. The
balance of long-term debt and long-term payables (including current portion) amounted to ¥3,763.6 billion, as of
March 31, 2005. Within this total, long-term payables incurred for purchase of the Shinkansen railway ground
facilities (including current portion) amounted to ¥2,746.1 billion, down ¥276.9 billion. Thus the total asset decreased
¥164.0 billion to ¥5,309.4 billion. -

As aresult of securing company net income, total shareholders’ equity rose 11.0%, to ¥850.4 billion.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Central Japan Railway Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries March 31. 2005 and 2004
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
ASSETS (Note 2) (Note 2)
2005 2004 2005
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 78,486 ¥ 79,554 $ 733,514
Trade receivables 36,279 37,899 339,056
Allowance for doubtful accounts (10) [€3)) (93)
Inventories 12,443 11,956 116,289
Land and buildings held for sale 4,083 6,079 38,158
Deferred tax assets (Note 11) 19,374 17,289 181,065
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 22,104 21,137 206,609
Total current assets 172,762 173,884 1,614,598

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:

Investment securities (Note 5) 54,770 56,529 511,869

Investments in and advances to unconsolidated
subsidiaries and associated companies 10,270 9,472 95,981
Deferred tax assets (Note 11) 146,238 137,405 1,366,710
Prepaid expenses and other (Note 9) 27,901 48,022 260,786
Total investments and other assets 239,181 251429 2,235,346

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Buildings and structures (Notes 6 and 7) 4,147,150 4,118,212 38,758,411
Machinery, rolling stock and vehicles (Note 12) 1,028,930 997,476 9,616,168
Land (Note 7) 2,348,017 2,350,598 21,944,084
Other 98,026 89,143 916,150
Construction in progress (Note 6) 68,646 90,704 641,551
Total 7,690,771 7,646,134 71,876,364
Accumulated depreciation (Note 12) (2,793,223) (2,597,936) (26,104,897)
Net property and equipment 4,897,547 5,048,193 45,771,467

TOTAL ¥ 5,309,491 ¥5473,512 §49,621,411

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




March 31. 2005 and 2004

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Note 2) (Note 2)
2005 2004 2005
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Note 7) ¥ 13,721 ¥ 11,175 $128,233
Trade payables 122,761 119,480 1,147,299
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 97,929 109,318 915,224
Current portion of long-term payables (Note 8) 199,345 194,635 1,863,037
Accrued bonuses 23,035 22,705 215,280
Consumption tax payable 10,069 11,028 94,102
Accrued income taxes 43,720 32,024 408,598
Advances received 35,879 38,344 335,317
Other current liabilities (Note 13) 66,358 64,204 620,199
Total current liabilities 612,820 602,916 5,727,289
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (Note 7) 919,576 918,025 8,594,168
Long-term payables {(Notes 8 and 13) 2,546,763 2,828,391 23,801,523
Allowance for large scale renovation of the Shinkansen
infrastructure (Note 4.c) 83,333 50,000 778,813
Liabilities for employees' retirement benefits (Note 9) 229,051 238,473 2,140,663
Other (Note 11) 53,568 57,767 500,655
Total long-term liabilities 3,832,293 4,092,657 35,815,822
MINORITY INTERESTS 13,920 11,967 130,114
CONTINGENCIES (Notes 12 and 14)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Notes 10 and 16):
Common stock—authorized, 8,960,000 shares:
issued. 2.240.000 shares in 2005 and 2004 112,000 112,000 1,046,728
Capital surplus 53,500 53,500 500,000
Retained earnings 674,990 590,174 6,308,317
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 10,887 11,216 101,747
Treasury stock—at cost. 1.948 shares in 2005 and 2004 921) 921) (8,606)
Total shareholders’ equity 850,456 765,970 7,948,186
TOTAL ¥ 5,309,491 ¥5473512 $49,621,411

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings

Central Japan Railway Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
(Note 2) (Note 2)
2005 2004 2003 2005
OPERATING REVENUES (Note 13) ¥ 1,409,497 ¥ 1,384,055 ¥1,363,034 $ 13,172,869
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Transportation, other services and cost of sales {(Notes 4.3, 4b and 4.¢) 887,979 871,208 842,907 8,298,869
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 13) 173,690 168,401 178,710 1,623,290
Total operating costs and expenses 1,061,670 1,039,610 1,021,617 9,922,159
Operating income 347,826 344,445 341416 3,250,710
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest and dividend income 727 561 584 6,794
Interest expense (Notes 8 and 13) (179,291) (193,699) (207,415) (1,675,616)
Gain on sales of investment securities—net 21,782 738 4,039 203,570
Loss on sales of property and equipment (2,251) (3,479) (1,117) (21,037)
Loss on debt assumption (Note 8) (29,789) (17,745) (17,900) (278,401)
Other—net (Note 6) 412 (5,516) (11,642) 3,839
Other expenses—net (188,411) (219,141) (233,452) (1,760,851)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS 159,415 125,303 107,963 1,489,859
INCOME TAXES (Note 11):
Current 71,974 64,989 67,175 672,654
Deferred (10,652) (13,225) (10,061) (99,561)
Total income taxes 61,321 51,764 57,114 573,093
MINORITY INTERESTS IN EARNINGS OF
CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 2,005 1,261 1,764 18,757
NET INCOME ¥ 96,087 72,278 49,085 $ 898,009
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 590,174 529,388 491,781 5,515,644
ADJUSTMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS FOR
MERGER OF NON-CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY 202 1,887
APPROPRIATIONS:
Cash dividends (11,200} (11,200) (11,200) (104,672)
Other (274) (292) 278) (2,551)
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR (Notes 10 and 16) ¥ 674,990 ¥590,174 ¥529388 $6,308317
Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2003 2005
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 3.p):
Basic net income ¥42,806.63 ¥32,172.54 ¥21,801.76 $ 400.06
Cash dividends applicable to the year 5,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 51.40

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Central Japan Railway Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31. 2005, 2004 and 2003
Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
(Note 2) (Note 2)
2008 2004 2003 2005
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 159,415 ¥ 125,303 ¥107,963  $1,489,859
Adjustments for:
Income taxes—paid (62,331) (68,204) (67,891) (582,532)
Depreciation and amortization 250,807 225,439 221,078 2,343,990
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies (81) 38 43) (757)
Contributions for the construction of railway facilities received (12,973) (10,758) (16,626) (121,242)
Gain on sales of investment securities—net (21,782) (738) (4,039) (203,570)
Loss on disposals of property and equipment 42,569 52,684 57,518 397,841
Loss on sales of property and equipment 2,251 3,479 1,117 21,037
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in allowance for large scale renovation of the Shinkansen infrastructure 33,333 33,333 16,666 311,523
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 1,632 (1,345) 6,850 15,252
Decrease in inventories 1,524 1,584 930 14,242
Increase (decrease) in trade payables (2,479) (15,265) 21,910 (23,168)
Increase (decrease) in advances received (2,473) (1,159) 3,219 (23,112)
Decrease in provision for employees' retirement benefits (9,445) (8,377) (8,304) (88,271)
Other—net 42,777 33,967 42,648 399,777
Net cash provided by operating activities 422,743 369.981 382,998 3,950,869
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (134,864) (160,951) (173,418) (1,260,411)
Receipts of contributions for the construction of railway facilities 13,878 14,257 17,884 129,700
Proceeds from sales of marketable and investment securities (Note 5) 22,797 1,111 9,663 213,056
Purchases of investment securities and investment in and
advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies (1,101) (1,047 (14,592) (10,289)
Other—net 1,685 (4,265) (8,503) 15,758
Net cash used in investing activities (97,604) (150,895) (168.966) (912,186)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase {decrease) in short-term borrowings 2,580 8,197 952) 24,112
Proceeds from long-term debt 123,600 82,000 101,000 1,155,140
Repayment of long-term debt (133,437) (44,505) (51,256)  (1,247,074)
Repayment of long-term payables (276,917) (233,597) (226,801)  (2,588,009)
Cash dividends paid {11,200) (11,200) (11,200) (104,672)
Payment of cash dividends to minority interests (14) (15) (16) (130)
Other—net (31,260) (18,206) (18,624) (292,152)
Net cash used in financing activifies (326,648) (217,328) (207.851)  (3,052,785)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCREASED BY MERGER OF
NON-CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY 442 127 4,121
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,067) 1,884 6,181 (9,981)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 79,554 77,669 71,488 743,495
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ¥ 78,486 ¥ 79,554 ¥ 77,669 $733,514
ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid ¥ 181,266 ¥ 195,629 ¥ 208,929 $ 1,694,074

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Central Japan Railway Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. INCORPORATION OF CENTRAL JAPAN RAILWAY COMPANY

Central Japan Railway Company (Tokai Ryokaku Tetsudo Kabushiki Gaisha, the "Company") was incorporated on April 1, 1987, as a private
business company, pursuant to the Law for Japanese National Railways Restructuring enacted upon the resolution of the Japanese Diet.

The business of the Japanese National Railways ("JNR," a public corporation) was succeeded to by the following newly established organizations:
seven railway companies including the Company, the Shinkansen Holding Corporation (a predecessor entity to the Railway Development Fund
(1997-1991). which was subsequently succeeded by the Corporation for Advanced Transport and Technology (2003-1997) and in turn by the
Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology Agency), Railway Telecommunication Co., Ltd. (a predecessor entity to Japan Telecom
Co., Ltd., which was subsequently acquired by, among others, Vodafone Group), Railway Information Systems Co., Ltd. and the Railway
Technical Research Institute. JNR itself became JNR Settlement Corporation (the "JNRSC"). All of the assets and liabilities of JNR were
transferred to such organizations, including JNRSC.

Prior to December 1, 2001, the Law Concerning Passenger Railway Companies and Japan Freight Railway Company (the "Law") required that
authorization be obtained from the Minister of Land, Infrastructure and Transport {the "Minister of Transport”) regarding fundamentals such as:
(1) commencement of business other than railway and its related business, (2) the appointment or dismissal of representative directors and
corporate auditors, (3) the issuance of new shares and bonds, (4) long-term borrowings, (5) amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, (6)
operating plans, (7) sales of material assets, (8) appropriations of earnings and (9) merger or dissolution.

As of December 1, 2001, the Law was revised such that the Company was no longer required to obtain the aforementioned authorizations.

On October 8, 1997, the Company's shares were listed on the Nagoya, Tokyo and Osaka stock exchanges in Japan, JNRSC, which held all
2,240,000 of the Company's outstanding shares prior to the listing, sold 1,353,929 shares in the initial public offerings.

Pursuant to the Law for Disposal of Debts and Liabilities of INRSC enacted in October of 1998, the Company's shares held by INRSC were
transferred to Japan Railway Construction Public Corporation.

On October 1, 2003, the Corporation for Advanced Transport and Technology and the Japan Railway Construction Public Corporation were fully
integrated, pursuant to the Law of Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology enacted on October 1, 2003, and designated as Japan
Railway Construction, Transport and Technology Agency.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Securities and
Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are
different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial
statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, certain
reclassifications have been made in the 2004 consolidated balance sheet, and in 2004 and 2003 consolidated statements of income and retained
earnings and consolidated statements of cash flows to conform to the classifications used in 2005.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the Company is incorporated and operates.
The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been
made at the rate of ¥107 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2005. Such translations should not be construed as representations
that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate, Japanese yen figures less than million yen are
rounded down to the nearest million yen, except for per share information and U.S. dollar figures less than thousand of U.S. dollar are also
rounded down to the nearest thousand of U.S. dollar, except for per share information.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2005 include the accounts of the Company and its 30 (29 in 2004, 30 in
2003) significant subsidiaries (together, the "Companies").

Under the control or influence concept, those companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations
are fully consolidated, and those companies over which the Companies have the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the
equity method.

Investments in two associated companies are accounted for by the equity method. Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries and
associated companies are stated at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these companies, the effect on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be material.

The excess of cost over net assets of the subsidiaries acquired is charged to income when incurred.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets
resulting from transactions within the Companies is eliminated.

A consolidated subsidiary has adopted a fiscal year ending on February 28, which is different from that of the Company. The necessary
adjustments for preparing consolidated financial statements as at the Company's year end was appropriately made, such as eliminating significant
intercompany accounts and transactions which occur between the fiscal year end of the subsidiary and fiscal year end of the Company.

b. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificate of deposits, commercial paper, mortgaged-back securities and mutual funds investing in bonds,
all of which mature or become due within three months of the date of acquisition.

c. Inventories

Merchandise is stated at cost principally determined by the retail method. Materials and supplies are carried at cost principally determined by the
moving-average cost method.

d. Land and Buildings Held for Sale

Land and buildings held for sale are stated at cost determined by the specific identification method.

e. Investment Securities

All investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending on management's intent, as available-for-sale securities, which are
principally comprised of investment securities, with unrealized gains and losses, and are reported at fair value, net of applicable taxes, in a
separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average cost method. For other than temporary declines
in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

f. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Certain contributions in aid for construction of railways and other property are deducted directly from
the cost of the related assets.

Depreciation is computed substantially by the declining-balance method over the estimated useful lives of the assets (see Note 4.b). Additional
depreciation is provided for Shinkansen cars based on kilometers traveled.

The range of useful lives is principally from 2 to 60 years for buildings and structures, and from 2 to 20 years for machinery, rolling stock and
vehicles.

Depreciation of certain railway ground structures except for Shinkansen railway ground facilities are substantially computed by the replacement-
accounting method (see Note 4.a).




g. Long-lived Assets

In August 2002. the Business Accounting Council issued a Statement of Opinion, "Accounting for Impairment of Fixed Assets,” and in October
2003 the Accounting Standards Board of Japan ("ASB") issued ASB Guidance No. 6, "Guidance for Accounting Standard for Impairment of
Fixed Assets." These new pronouncements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2005 with early adoption permitted for
fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2004.

The Companies adopted the new accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets as of April 1, 2004. The Companies review its long-lived
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

The effect of adoption of the new accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets was to decrease income before income taxes and minority
interests for the year ended March 31, 2005 by ¥1,053 million (39,841 thousand).

h. Software Costs

Software costs are amortized by the straight-line method over 5 years.

i. Deferred Charges

Bond issuance costs are charged to income as incurred.

J. Allowance for Large Scale Renovation of the Shinkansen Infrastructure

Allowance for large scale renovation of the Shinkansen infrastructure is provided based on the Company's allowance plan authorized by the
Minister of Transport over 15 years from October 1, 2002 in accordance with the Nationwide Shinkansen Railway Development Law (see Note
4.0).

k. Retirement and Pension Plans

The Company and 26 consolidated subsidiaries have unfunded retirement plans covering substantially alf of their employees. Under the plans,
employees terminating their employment are entitled to retirement benefit based on their rate of pay at the time of termination, years of service
and certain other factors. Seven consolidated subsidiaries have non-contributory funded pension plans as an alternative for, or in addition to, an
unfunded retirement plan. .

The service periods during which employees served JNR are regarded and treated as a part of their service periods with the Company. Liabilities
for severance payments related to such prior service periods were transferred from JNR.

The liability for employees' retirement benefits is calculated based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

l. Leases

All leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under the Japanese accounting standards for leases, for lessee, finance leases that are deemed to
transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized, while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as
operating lease transactions if certain "as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee's consolidated financial statements, and
for lessor, finance leases that are deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be accounted for as sales transactions,
while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain "as if treated as financing” information is
disclosed in the notes to the lessor's consolidated financial statements.

m, Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolidated statements of income and retained earnings.
The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted
tax laws to the temporary difference.

n. Appropriations of Retained Earnings

Appropriations of retained earnings are reflected in the financial statements for the following year upon shareholders’ approval.

0. Consumption Tax

Consumption tax is levied in Japan on the domestic sales of goods and services at the rate of 5%. Consumption tax is excluded from revenue and
expense accounts.

p. Per Share Information

Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted a new accounting standard for earnings per share of common stock issued by the ASB. Under the
new standard, basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders, which is more precisely
computed than under previous practices, by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for
stock splits.

Basic net income per share for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is computed in accordance with the new standard. The net income
available to common shareholders used in the computation for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were ¥95,803 million ($895,355 thousand), ¥72,003 million
and ¥48,793 million, respectively. The average number of common shares used in the computation was 2,238,052 shares for 2005, 2004 and
2003. Diluted net income per share is not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as the Companies do not have any
dilutive securities.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and retained earnings are dividends applicable to the
respective years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year,

4. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

a. Effective April 1, 2003, the Company adopted the straight-line method of depreciation for the replacement assets of the Shinkansen railway
ground facilities, which, previously, had been depreciated by the replacement-accounting method. This change was made as those assets became
available to be managed in the same manner as other depreciable assets and to mitigate particular adverse effects of the replacement-accounting
method on the occasion of price plunging.

The effects of this change were to increase operating costs by ¥9,691 million and to decrease operating income and income before income taxes
and minority interests by ¥9,691 million for the year ended March 31, 2004.

Furthermore, the Company revised its estimate of the useful lives relating to the aforementioned depreciable assets in the Shinkansen railway
ground facilities, such as rails, points, point switch movements and overhead contact lines. This change of estimate was made in order to agree
with the actual cycles of replacement.

The effects of this change were to increase operating costs by ¥4,265 million and to decrease operating income and income before income taxes
and minority interests by ¥4,265 million for the year ended March 31, 2004.

b. Effective April 1, 2004, the Company adopted the declining-balance method of depreciation for the buildings and structures of the Shinkansen
railway ground facilities, which had been previously depreciated by the straight-line method which had been different from method adopted for
conventional railway network since assuming Shinkansen railway ground facilities. This change was made to reinforce the financial position and
unify the method of Shinkansen railway ground facilities to that of conventional railway network in connection with both commencement of
Shinagawa station and drastic timetable revisions focusing on completion of improving Shinkansen trains to operate at 270 km/hr.

The effects of this change were to increase depreciation by ¥39,455 million ($368,738 thousand) and to decrease income before income taxes and
minority interests by approximately ¥39.455 million ($368,738 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2005.
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c. Allowance for Large Scale Renovation of the Shinkansen Infrastructure

Pursuant to the Nationwide Shinkansen Railway Development Law, the Company was designated by the Minister of Transport as a company
necessary and appropriate to provide for allowance for large scale renovation of the Shinkansen infrastructure, where the Company's allowance
plan requires an aggregate amount of ¥500,000 million over 15 years from the date of authorization. Such authorization was granted by the
Minister of Transport on October 1, 2002. Accordingly, the Company provided ¥16,666 million for the year ended March 31, 2003, which is
included in operating costs and expenses (transportation, other services and cost of sales) in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and retained earnings.

The effect of this change was to decrease operating income and income before income taxes and minority interests by ¥16,666 million for the year
ended March 31, 2003.

5. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Information regarding investment securities with readily determinable fair values classified as available-for-sale as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 is
as follows:

Millions of Yen

2005 2004
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses  Fair Value Cost Gains Losses  Fair Value
Equity securities ¥ 14,547 ¥ 18,105 ¥147 ¥32,505 ¥13,676 ¥19,241 ¥371  ¥32546
Debt securities 70 2 73 105 2 108
Trust fund investment and other 276 84 360 276 53 330

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses  Fair Value
Equity securities $135,953 $169,205 $1,373 $ 303,785
Debt securities 654 28 682
Trust fund investment and other 2,579 785 3,364

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were ¥22,797 million ($213.056
thousand), ¥1,111 million and ¥9,663 million, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on these sales, computed on the moving average cost
basis, were ¥21,782 million ($203,570 thousand) and nil, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2005, ¥738 million and nil, respectively, for
the year ended March 31, 2004, and ¥4,637 million and ¥598 million, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2003.

Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is not readily determinable as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Equity securities ¥ 16,354 ¥ 18,052 $ 152,841
Preferred stocks 5,542 5,542 51,794
Total ¥ 21,896 ¥23,594 $ 204,635

The carrying values of debt securities by contractual maturities for securities classified as available-for-sale securities as of March 31, 2005 are as
follows:

Thousands of

Maturity Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years ¥30 $ 280

Due after five years 40 374
Total ¥70 $ 654

Certain securities, which amounted to ¥65 million (5597 thousand) and ¥49 million as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were included in
the prepaid expenses and other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

6. LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Companies recognize all properties of the railway business as one asset group, which includes both the Shinkansen railway ground facilities
and conventional railway network. The business properties other than railway business properties are also principally divided into each asset
groups in which the Companies continuously receive cash flows in consideration of complementary cash flows.

The Companies reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of the year ended March 31, 2005 and, as a result, recognized an impairment loss
of ¥1,095 million ($10,233 thousand) as other expense for commercial facilities in Tokyo, which are included in buildings and structures, due to
decrease of profitability and lands in Aichi or other areas, which are included in construction in progress, due to having been idle by freezing plans
of increasing lines.

These carrying amounts were written down to the recoverable amounts, which were measured at memorandum value, due to the fact that there
were little opportunities to sell or divert those assets.

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The annual average interest rates applicable to short-term borrowings were 0.28% for 2005 and 2004, and 0.31% for 2003.
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:




Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
The Company
Secured 3.95% Bonds due 2016 ¥ 30,000 ¥ 30,000 $ 280,373
Secured 2.825% Bonds due 2017 50,000 50,000 467,289
Secured 2.18% Bonds due 2018 30,000 30,000 280,373
Secured 2.6% Bonds due 2020 50,000 50,000 467,289
Unsecured 2.39% Bonds due 2022 20,000 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 2.2% Bonds due 2022 20,000 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 1.49% Bonds due 2012 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 1.74% Bonds due 2022 20,000 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 142% Bonds due 2017 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 1.15% Bonds due 2022 25,000 25,000 233,644
Unsecured 1.31% Bonds due 2033 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 2.015% Bonds due 2023 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 2.20% Bonds due 2024 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 2.19% Bonds due 2019 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 1.875% Bonds due 2019 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 2.21% Bonds due 2024 10,000 93,457
Unsecured loans from Japanese banks and insurance companies,
with interest rates ranging from 0.78% to 6.6%, due 2005 to 2021 584,710 635.472 5,464,583
Subsidiaries
Unsecured and secured loans from Japanese banks
and insurance companies, with interest rates
ranging from 0.60% to 5.75%. due 2005 to 2018 97,796 106,871 913,982
Total 1,017,506 1,027,344 9,509,392
Less current maturities (97,929) (109,318) (915,224)
Long-term debt, less current maturities ¥ 919,576 ¥ 9718025 $ 8,594,168

The annual maturities of long-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2006 ¥ 97,929 $915,224
2007 116,898 1,092,504
2008 113,530 1,061,028
2009 87,746 820,056
2010 107,440 1,004,112
Thereafter 493 960 4,616,468

Total ¥ 1017506 $9,509,392

The Company has been released from the debt repayment obligation for a portion of the bonds issued by depositing equivalent assets under debt
assumption agreements with financial institutions and accounting for outstanding bonds covered by these agreements as contingent liabilities. The
balance of bonds released from their debt repayment obligation amounted to ¥20,000 million ($186,915 thousand) as of March 31, 2005 (see Note 14).
All assets of the Company were pledged for the above secured bonds of ¥180.000 million (31,682,242 thousand), including aforementioned off-
balanced bonds of ¥20,000 million ($186,915 thousand), as an enterprise mortgage, which gives the holder thereof a security interest in all assets

junior to that of other present or future secured creditors, but senior to that of general creditors.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for current portion of long-term debt of ¥254 million ($2.373 thousand) and the above
secured long-term debt of consolidated subsidiaries of ¥2,094 million ($19,570 thousand), and the long-term debt of an unconsolidated subsidiary

at March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
For long-term debt of consolidated subsidiary:

Buildings and structures—net of accumulated depreciation ¥1,124 $10514
Land 669 6,252
Total ¥ 1794 $ 16,766

For long-term debt of unconsolidated subsidiary:
Buildings and structures—net of accumulated depreciation ¥ 130 $1,224
Land 120 1,121
Total ¥ 251 32345
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8. LONG-TERM PAYABLES
Long-term payables as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Long-term payables incurred for purchase of
the Shinkansen railway ground facilities:
With average interest rate of 4.50% (2005) and 4.57% (2004),
due semiannually through 2017 ¥ 1,769,994 ¥1,961,318 $ 16,542,000
With a fixed interest rate of 6.35%, due semiannually through 2017 382,323 465,722 3,573,112
With a fixed interest rate of 6.55%, due semiannually through 2051 583,376 585,290 5,452,112
Other 10,414 10,694 97,336
Total 2,746,109 3,023,026 25,664,560
Less current maturities (199,345) (194,635) (1,863,037)
Long-term payables, less current maturities ¥ 2,546,763 ¥2,82839/ $ 23,801,523

Based on debt assumption agreements with financial institutions and a special purpose entity, the Company has transferred the debt repayment
obligation for certain long-term payables to such financial institutions and special purpose entity, and has provided such financial institutions and
special purpose entity with Japanese national government bonds or cash for the payment of principal and interest on the long-term payables. Asa
result of such transactions, the balance of long-term payables derecognized amounted to ¥311,125 million (82,907,710 thousand) and ¥265,335
million as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and the related loss on debt assumption amounted to ¥29,789 million ($278,401 thousand)
and ¥17.,745 million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively (see Note 14).

The annual maturities of long-term payables as of March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2006 ¥ 199,345 $ 1,863,037
2007 187,038 1,748,018
2008 116,636 1,090,056
2009 122,806 1,147,719
2010 128,742 1,203,196
Thereafter 1,991,540 18,612,534

Total ¥ 2,746,109 $ 25,664,560

Interest expense on aforementioned long-term payables amounted to ¥152,338 million ($1,423,719 thousand), ¥166,148 million and ¥179,615
million for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

9. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

The Company and 26 consolidated subsidiaries have unfunded retirement plans covering substantially all of their employees. Under the plans,
employees terminating their employment are entitled to retirement benefit based on their rate of pay at the time of termination, year of service and
certain other factors. Such retirement benefits are made in the form of a lump-sum severance payment from the Company or from 26
consolidated subsidiaries. Seven consolidated subsidiaries also have non-contributory funded pension plans, as an alternative for, or in addition
to, the unfunded retirement plans.

The net liability for employees' retirement benefits at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005

Prcjected benefit obligation ¥ 241,813 ¥ 253,654 $2,259,934
Fair value of plan assets (4,725) (4,670) (44,158)
Unrecognized actuarial loss (8,206) (10,734) (76,691)
Unrecognized prior service cost 144 209 1,345
Prepaid pension cost 25 15 233
Net liability ¥ 229,051 ¥238473 $ 2,140,663

The prepaid pension cost was recorded as prepaid expenses and other in the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2005 and 2004.
The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2003 2005

Service cost ¥ 10,480 ¥ 10,206 ¥ 11,487 $ 97,943
Interest cost 3,841 5,102 5,326 35,897
Expected return on plan assets (45) 3%) (57) (420)
Recognized actuarial loss 3,478 3,240 (50) 32,506
Amortization of prior service cost 196 (64) 1,353 1,831
Net periodic benefit costs ¥ 17,950 ¥ 18,447 ¥ 18,060 $ 167,757




Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2004 and 2003 are set forth as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Discount rate Mainly 1.5%  Mainly 1.5% 2.0%1t02.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.75% to 1.5% 0.75%tw01.5% 12%102.0%
Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss Mainly 5 years Mainly 5 years Mainly 5 years
Amortization period of prior service cost 5 years 5 years S years

10. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Japanese Commercial Code (the "Code").

The Code requires that all shares of cormon stock are recorded with no par value and at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is required to
be recorded as common stock and the remaining net proceeds as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus. The Code permits
Japanese companies, upon approval of the Board of Directors, to issue shares to existing shareholders without consideration as a stock split. Such
issuance of shares generally does not give rise to changes within the shareholders' accounts.

The Code also provides that an amount at least equal to 10% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and certain other appropriations of
retained earnings associated with cash outlays applicable to each period shall be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained
earnings) until such reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of common stock. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and legal
reserve that exceeds 25% of the common stock may be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders. In addition, the Code permits the
transfer of a portion of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve to the common stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.

The Code allows Japanese companies to repurchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The
repurchased amount of treasury stock cannot exceed the amount available for future dividend plus the amount of common stock, additional paid-
in capital or legal reserve to be reduced in the case where such reduction was resolved at the shareholders meeting.

In addition to the provision that requires an appropriation for a legal reserve in connection with the cash payment, the Code imposes certain
limitations on the amount of retained earnings available for dividends. The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under the Code
was ¥647,780 million (86,054,018 thousand) as of March 31, 2005, based on the amount recorded in the parent company's general books of
account,

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable. Semiannual
interim dividends may also be paid upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations imposed by the Code.

11. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in normal
effective statutory tax rates of approximately 40% and 42% for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On March 31, 2003, a tax reform law concerning enterprise tax was enacted in Japan which changed the normal effective statutory tax rate from
42% to 40%, effective for years beginning on or after April 1, 2004. The deferred tax assets and labilities which will be realized on or after April
1, 2004 are measured at the effective tax rate of 40% as of March 31, 2004.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Deferred tax assets:

Liabilities for employees’ retirement benefits ¥ 85,849 ¥ 83,399 $ 802,327
Depreciation and amortization 41,203 37,462 385,074
Software 11,124 7,643 103,962
Accrued bonuses 9,092 8,887 84,971
Railway usage charges 8,767 9,159 81,934
Unrealized profit of property and equipment 5,670 5,699 52,990
Loss carryforwards 3,966 4,288 37,065
Other 27,510 26,171 257,134
Total 193,184 182,711 1,805,457
Less valuation allowance (15,907) (15,983) (148,663)
Deferred tax assets 177,277 166,728 1,656,794

Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 7,252 7,610 67,775
Property and equipment 4,040 3,881 37,757
Other 453 729 4,253
Deferred tax liabilities 11,746 12,220 109,785

Net deferred tax assets ¥ 165,530 ¥ 154507 $ 1,547,009
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Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under following captions:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Current assets ¥19,374 ¥ 17,289 $ 181,065
Investment and other assets 146,238 137,405 1,366,710
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities (81) (186) (766)
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 165,530 ¥ 154,507 $ 1,547,009

Since the difference between normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate was not significant, the reconciliation was not
presented for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004.

12. LEASES

As lessee, the Company and consolidated subsidiaries lease certain machinery and vehicles and other assets. Total lease payments under finance
lease arrangements that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the Company and consolidated subsidiaries were ¥1,160 million
($10,841 thousand) and ¥2,169 million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Pro forma information of leased property such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, obligations under finance lease, depreciation expense
and interest expense of finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an "as if capitalized” basis for the years
ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Machinery and Machinery and Machinery and
Vehicle Other Total Vehicle Other Total Vehicle Other Total
Acquisition costs ¥ 663 ¥2,958 ¥ 3,622 ¥ 411 ¥4,151 ¥ 4,562 $6,196 $27,655 $33,851
Accumulated depreciation 306 1,609 1,915 181 2,539 2,720 2,860 15,048 17,908
Net leased property ¥ 357 ¥ 1349 ¥ 1,706 ¥230 ¥1612 ¥ 1,842 $3336 $12,607 $15943

Obligations under finance leases:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥ 714 ¥ 380 $6,672
Due after one year 1,016 1,011 9,505
Total ¥1,731 ¥ 1,892 $16,177

The amount of acquisition cost and obligations under finance leases includes the imputed interest expense portion.

Depreciation expense, which is not reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and retained earnings, computed by the
straight-line method was ¥1,160 million ($10,841 thousand) and ¥2,169 million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases at March 31, 2005 and 2004 are due as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥ 854 ¥ 854 $ 7,981
Due after one year 6,123 6,977 57,224
Total ¥6,977 ¥7832 $65,205

As lessor, certain consolidated subsidiaries provide leases such as vehicles, machinery and equipment, which are recorded in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The gross amounts of those assets and related accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Acquisition costs ¥ 365 ¥ 435 $3411
Accumulated depreciation 204 238 1,907
Net leased property yl6l ¥ 197 $ 1,504




Future minimum lease income under finance leases as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 are due as foliows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥ 160 ¥ 168 $ 1,495
Due after one year 151 167 1,411
Total ¥311 ¥335 $2,906

The amount of future minimum lease income under finance leases mentioned above includes the imputed interest income portion. Lease income
and depreciation relating to lease properties reflected in the accompanying statements of income and retained earnings for the year ended March
31,2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Lease income ¥ 176 ¥173 $1,644
Depreciation expense 85 35 794

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following table summarizes the Company's related party transactions with the Company's major shareholder and a company whose chairman
was the chairman of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, and related balances as of March 31, 2005 and 2004.

Pursuant to the Law of Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology enacted on October 1, 2003, the Corporation for Advanced
Transport and Technology (the "CATT") integrated with Japan Railway Construction Public Corporation (the "JRCPC"), that had been the
Company's major shareholder as discussed in Note 1, to establish Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology Agency (the "JRTT").
JRTT acquired all assets and assumed all liabilities from these two public corporations.

As a result of the integration mentioned above, the transaction with JRTT fell within the scope of a related party transaction. The Company has
recognized the transaction of payment of long-term payables and related interest to JRTT as a related party transaction with a major shareholder
since the date of the integration.

As discussed in Note 8, based on debt assumptions agreements with the financial institutions and the special purpose entity, the Company
transferred the debt repayment obligation for certain long-term payables to such financial institutions and special purpose entity. Corresponding
to this off balance sheet transaction, the amount of ¥311,125 million ($2,907,710 thousand) derecognized was excluded from the balance of long-
term payables due to JRTT shown below.

Transactions and related balances were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Interest expense ¥ 151,702 ¥ 81,650 $ 1,417,775
Long-term payables 2,735,695 3,012,332 25,567,242
Other current liabilities (accrued expenses) 10,096 11,740 94,355

The Company has provided financial support principaily based on endowments to and received rental fees of building from JR Tokai Lifelong
Learning Foundation (the "Foundation"} whose chairman is the chairman of the Company.
Transactions with the Foundation were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005

Charitable contribution ¥62
Rental fee ¥1 $9

The chairman tesigned at the expiration of his term at the 17th general shareholders meeting on June 23, 2004.

14. CONTINGENCIES

The Companies guarantee the long-term debt of an unconsolidated subsidiary of ¥268 million (52,504 thousand) as of March 31, 2005.

The Company has joint and several obligations with Railway Technical Research Institute to make payments on long-term borrowings of ¥37,516
million ($350,616 thousand) by the Institute as of March 31, 2005, the proceeds of which are being used for the enhancement of technology
development for the Maglev system.

As discussed in Notes 7 and 8, based on debt assumption agreements with the financial institutions and the special purpose entity, the Company
has transferred the debt repayment obligation for certain bonds and long-term payables to such financial institutions and special purpose entity. At
March 31, 2005, the Company had contingent obligations of ¥20,000 million ($186,915 thousand) for the bonds and of ¥311,125 million
($2,907,710 thousand) for long-term payables, respectively.
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15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Companies' primary business activities include transportation, merchandise and other, real estate and other services. The transportation
segment includes the Company's railway and bus operations. The merchandise and other segment includes department store, wholesale, retail
sales and food service. The real estate segment includes real estate rental business. Other services segment includes hotel, travel, advertising,
construction and other business.

Information by these industry segments of the Companies for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

(1) Sales and Operating Income

Millions of Yen

Merchandise Other  Eliminations
Transportation and Other Real Estate Services or Corporate Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2005:
Operating revenues:

Qutside customers ¥ 1,137,183 ¥ 171,599 ¥37072 ¥63,641 ¥ 1,409,497
Intercompany 11,081 6,976 18,646 74,605 ¥ (111,309)
Total 1,148,265 178,575 55,718 138,246 (111,309) 1409497
Operating costs and expenses 821,138 172,979 42,879 136,027 (111,354) 1,061,670
Operating income ¥ 327,127 ¥5.596 ¥12839 ¥2218 ¥a4 ¥ 347.826
Millions of Yen
Merchandise Other Eliminations

Transportation and Other Real Estate Services or Corporate  Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2004:
Operating revenues:

Outside customers ¥ 1,114,515 ¥ 169473 ¥ 38,069 ¥61,995 ¥ 1,384,055
Intercompany 11,077 6,816 17,407 77,695 ¥ (112,996)
Total 1,125.593 176,289 55477 139,691 (112.996) 1,384,055
Operating costs and expenses 801,582 170,921 43,284 136,647 (112,826) 1,039,610
Operating income ¥324011 ¥ 5368 ¥12,192 ¥3.043 ¥(170) ¥ 344,445
Millions of Yen
Merchandise Other Eliminations

Transportation and Other Real Estate Services or Corporate  Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2003:
Operating revenues:

Outside customers ¥1,096,861 ¥ 165,647 ¥ 36,238 ¥ 64,286 ¥ 1,363,034
Intercompany 11,146 10,229 17,039 64,195 ¥(102,610)
Total 1,108,008 175876 53278 128481 (102,610) 1,363,034
Operating costs and expenses 785,672 170,687 42,737 124,712 (102,191) 1,021,617
Operating income ¥ 322,336 ¥5189 ¥10541 ¥ 3,769 ¥(419) ¥ 341416

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Merchandise Qther Eliminations
Transportation and Other Real Estate Services or Corporate Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2005:
Qperating revenues:

Outside customers $10,627,878 $ 1,603,728 $346,467 $ 594,796 $ 13,172,869
Intercompany 103,570 65,197 174,261 697,243 $(1,040,271)
Total 10,731,448  1.668,925 520,728 1,292,039 (1,040271) 13,172,869
Operating costs and expenses 7,674,187 1,616,626 400,738 1,271,299 (1,040,691) 9,022,159
Operating income $3.057261 $52299  $119990 $20.740 3420 $3.250710

As discussed in Note 4.a, effective April 1, 2003, the Company adopted the straight-line method of depreciation for the replacement assets of the
Shinkansen railway ground facilities, which, previously, had been depreciated by the replacement-accounting method. The effects of this change
were to increase operating costs of transportation segment for the year ended March 31, 2004 by ¥9,691 million and 1o decrease operating income
of transportation segment by ¥9,691 million. Furthermore, the Company revised its estimate of the useful lives relating to depreciable assets in the
Shinkansen railway ground facilities, such as rails, points, point switch movements and overhead contact lines. The effects of this change were to
increase operating costs of transportation segment by ¥4,265 million and to decrease operating income of transportation segment by ¥4,265
million.
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As discussed in Note 4.b, effective April 1, 2004, the Company adopted the declining-balance method of depreciation for the buildings and
structures of the Shinkansen railway ground facilities, which had been previously depreciated by the straight-line method since assuming the
Shinkansen railway ground facilities that had been different from method adopted for conventional railway network. This change was made to
reinforce the financial position and unify its method to the method adopted for conventional railway network in connection with both
commencement of Shinagawa station and drastic timetable revisions focusing on completion of improving Shinkansen trains to operate at 270
km/hr. The effects of this change were to increase depreciation expense in transportation segment by ¥39,455 million ($368,738 thousand) and to
decrease operating income of transportation segment by approximately ¥39,455 million ($368,738 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2005.
(2) Assets, Depreciation and Amortization and Capital Expenditures

Millions of Yen

Merchandise Other  Eliminations
Transportation and Other Real Estate  Services or Corporate  Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2005:

Assets ¥ 5,055,400 ¥ 60,039 ¥ 272,077 ¥83272 ¥(161,298) ¥ 5,309,491
Depreciation and amortization 236,241 2,446 10,285 1,834 250,807
Capital expenditures 124,670 3,930 11,098 3,023 142,722

Millions of Yen

Merchandise Other Eliminations
Transportation and Other  Real Estate Services or Corporate  Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2004:

Assets ¥ 5,209,908 ¥ 58,241 ¥ 271,137 ¥ 80,305 ¥ (146,079) ¥5,473,512
Depreciation and amortization 210,869 2,480 10,359 1,729 225,439
Capital expenditures 150,900 2,699 11,304 2,432 167,337

Millions of Yen

Merchandise Other Eliminations
Transportation and Other Real Estate  Services or Corporate  Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2003;

Assets ¥ 5,318,706 ¥ 57,602 ¥271,721 ¥82,397 ¥ (151,834) ¥5,578,594
Depreciation and amortization 206,763 2,478 10,292 1,545 221,078
Capital expenditures 169,063 3,387 4,162 1,888 178,503

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Merchandise Other Eliminations
Transportation and Other Real Estate Services or Corporate  Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2005:
Assets $47,246,728  $561,112 $2,542,775 §$ 778,253
Depreciation and amortization 2,207,859 22,859 96,121 17,151
1,165,140 36,728 103,719 28,263

$(1,507,457) $49,621,411
2,343,990

Capital expenditures 1,333,850

As discussed in Note 3.¢g, effective April 1, 2004, the Companies adopted the new accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets. The effects
of this change were to decrease assets in transportation segment by ¥1,005 million ($9,392 thousand) and to decrease assets in merchandise and
other segment by ¥47 million ($439 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2005.

The amounts of corporate assets included in eliminations or corporate column were of ¥49,445 million ($462,102 thousand), ¥52,494 million and
¥20,032 million for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Corporate assets principally consisted of short-term and long-
term investments.

Geographic segment information and information for overseas sales are not presented since the Companies have no overseas operations.

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The following appropriations of retained earnings at March 31, 2005 were approved at the Company's shareholders meeting held on June 23,
2005:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥3,000 ($28.04) per share ¥6,720 $ 62,803
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 284 2,654
Total ¥7,004 $ 65,457
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Non-consolidated Balance Sheets

Central Japan Railway Company March 31, 2005 and 2004
Thousands
Millions of Yen of US. Dollars
ASSETS (Note 2) (Note 2)
2005 2004 2005
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 74,480 ¥ 75,363 $ 696,074
Trade receivables (Note 12) 18,510 18,463 172,990
Materials and supplies 6,864 6,175 64,149
Deferred tax assets (Note 10) 16,186 14,741 151,271
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 12) 23,663 22,334 221,170
Total current assets 139,705 137,079 1,305,654

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:

Investment securities 54,306 54,790 507,532

Investments in and advances to subsidiaries and
associated companies 117,621 112,339 1,099,261
Deferred tax assets (Note 10) 137,170 129,103 1,281,962
Prepaid expenses and other (Note 12) 21,689 31,929 202,731
Total investments and other assets 330,787 328,164 3,091,486

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 5):

Railway business property (Note 6} 7,060,282 7,009,884 65,983,943
Qther business property 226,817 221,501 2,119,785
Construction in progress (Note 6) 68,374 97,384 639,019
Total 7,355,474 7,328,770 68,742,747
Accumulated depreciation (2,679,500) (2,491,735) (25,042,065)
Net property and equipment 4,675,973 4,837,034 43,700,682

TOTAL ¥ 5,146,467 ¥5.302.278 3 48,097,822

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.
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March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands
Millions of Yen of US. Dollars
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Note 2) {Note 2)
2005 2004 2005
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings ¥ 69,233 ¥ 62,505 $ 647,037
Trade payables (Note 12) 85,883 79,379 802,644
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 89,974 100,962 840,878
Current portion of long-term payables (Note 8) 199,345 194,635 1,863,037
Accrued bonuses 19,620 19,481 183,364
Consumption tax payable 9,190 9,878 85,887
Accrued income taxes 39,826 28,532 372,205
Advances received 29,425 28,215 275,000
Interline payables (Note 12) 321 310 3,000
Other current liabilities (Note 12) 59,372 62,707 554,919
Total current liabilities 602,193 586,608 5,627,971
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (Note 7) 829,735 819,510 7,754,532
Long-term payables (Note 8) 2,546,763 2,828,391 23,801,523
Allowance for large scale renovation of the
Shinkansen infrastructure {Note 4.c) 83,333 50,000 778,813
Liabilities for employees' retirement benefits 222,115 231,651 2,075,841
Other (Note 12) 25,784 28,734 240,993
Total long-term liabilities 3,707,731 3,958.287 34,651,702
CONTINGENCIES (Notes 11 and 13)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Notes 9 and 14):
Common stock—-authorized. 8,960,000 shares; issued
and outstanding, 2,240,000 shares in 2005 and 2004 112,000 112,000 1,046,728
Capital surplus 53,500 53,500 500,000
Retained earnings:
Legal reserve 12,504 12,504 116,859
Unappropriated 647,780 568,632 6,054,018
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 10,757 10,744 100,544
Total shareholders’ equity 836,542 757,382 7,818,149
TOTAL ¥ 5,146,467 ¥5.302.278 $ 48,097,822

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.
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Non-conseclidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings

Central Japan Railway Company Years Ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Thousands
Millions of Yen of U.S. Dollars
(Note 2) {Note 2)
2005 2004 2003 2005
OPERATING REVENUES {(Note 12): ‘

Railway business ¥ 1,140,834 ¥ 1,118,660 ¥ 1,100,920 $10,662,000
Other 8,420 9,123 8,424 78,691
Total operating revenues 1,149,254 1,127,783 1,109,344 10,740,691

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES (Note 12):

Railway business (Notes 4.a, 4.b and 4.c) 813,743 795,111 778,907 7,605,074
Other 4,533 5,352 5,711 42,365
Total operating costs and expenses 818,276 800,463 784,618 7,647,439

* Operating income 330,978 327319 324726 3,093,252

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) (Note 12):

Interest and dividend income 821 630 659 7,672
Interest expense (Note 8) (176,660) (190,732) (204,020} (1,651,028)
Gain on sales of investment securities—net 20,609 738 4,038 192,607
Loss on debt assumption (Note 8) (29,789) (17,745) (17,900) (278,401)
Other—net (Note 6) 1,712 6,179) (10,884) 16,000
Other expenses—net (183,306) (213.289) (228,107)  (1,713,150)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 147,671 114,030 96,618 1,380,102

INCOME TAXES (Note 10):

Current 66,568 60,036 63,672 622,130
Deferred 9,519) (12,982) (10,248) (88,962)
Total income taxes 57,049 47,053 53424 533,168
NET INCOME 90,622 66,977 43,194 846,934
RETAINED EARNINGS (UNAPPROPRIATED), BEGINNING OF YEAR 568,632 513,148 481,432 5,314,317
APPROPRIATIONS:
Cash dividends (11,200) (11,200) (11,200) (104,672)
Other (274) (292) (278) 2,561)

RETAINED EARNINGS (UNAPPROPRIATED), END OF YEAR (Notes 9 and 14) ¥ 647,780 ¥ 568,632 ¥513.148  $6,054,018

Yen U.S. Dollars

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 3.0):
Net income ¥40,329.38 ¥29,778.01  ¥19,152.65 $376.91
Cash dividends applicable to the year 5,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 51.40

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.




Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

Central Japan Railway Company

1. INCORPORATION OF CENTRAL JAPAN RAILWAY COMPANY

Central Japan Railway Company (Tokai Ryokaku Tetsudo Kabushiki Gaisha, the "Company") was incorporated on April 1, 1987, as a
private business company, pursuant to the Law for Japanese National Railways Restructuring enacted upon the resolution of the Japanese
Diet.

The business of the Japanese National Railways ("JNR," a public corporation) was succeeded to by the following newly established
organizations: seven railway companies including the Company, the Shinkansen Holding Corporation (a predecessor entity to the Railway
Development Fund (1997-1991), which was subsequently succeeded by the Corporation for Advanced Transport and Technology
(2003-1997) and in turn by the Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology Agency), Railway Telecommunication Co., Ltd. (a
predecessor entity to Japan Telecom Co., Ltd., which was subsequently acquired by, among others, Vodafone Group), Railway Information
Systems Co., Ltd. and the Railway Technical Research Institute. JNR itself became JNR Settlement Corporation (the "JNRSC"). All of the
assets and liabilities of INR were transferred to such organizations, including JNRSC.

Prior to December 1, 2001, the Law Concerning Passenger Railway Companies and Japan Freight Railway Company (the "Law") required
that authorization be obtained from the Minister of Land, Infrastructure and Transport (the "Minister of Transport”) regarding fundamentals
such as: (1) commencement of business other than railway and its related business, (2) the appointment or dismissal of representative
directors and corporate auditors, (3) the issuance of new shares and bonds, (4) long-term borrowings, (5) amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation, (6) operating plans, (7) sales of material assets, (8) appropriations of earnings and (9) merger or dissolution.

As of December 1, 2001, the Law was revised such that the Company was no longer required to obtain the aforementioned authorizations.
On October 8, 1997, the Company's shares were listed on the Nagoya, Tokyo and Osaka stock exchanges in Japan. JNRSC, which held all
2,240,000 of the Company's outstanding shares prior to the listing, sold 1,353,929 shares in the initial public offerings.

Pursuant to the Law for Disposal of Debts and Liabilities of JNRSC enacted in October of 1998, the Company's shares held by JNRSC
were transferred to Japan Railway Construction Public Corporation.

On October 1, 2003, the Corporation for Advanced Transport and Technology and the Japan Railway Construction Public Corporation
were fully integrated, pursuant to the Law of Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology enacted on October 1, 2003, and
designated as Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology Agency.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by the Company in accordance
with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Commercial Code (the "Code"), the Japanese Securities and Exchange Law, the Law for
Railway Business Enterprise and related accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan,
which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

As consolidated statements of cash flows and certain disclosures are presented in the consolidated financial statements of the Company,
non-consolidated statements of cash flows and certain disclosures are not presented herein in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.

In preparing these non-consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the Company's
financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition,
certain reclassifications have been made in the 2004 and 2003 financial statements to conform to the classifications used in 2005. In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, certain disclosures are not required to be and have not been presented
herein.

The non-consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the Company is incorporated
and operates. The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside
Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥107 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2005. Such translations should not be
construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate. Japanese yen
figures less than million yen are rounded down to the nearest million yen, except for per share information and U.S. dollar figures less than
thousand of U.S. dollar are also rounded down to the nearest thousand of U.S. dollar, except for per share information.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Non-consolidation

The non-consolidated financial statements do not include the accounts of subsidiaries. Investment in subsidiaries and associated companies
are stated at cost.

b. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificate of deposits and commercial paper that represent short-term investments, all of which
mature or become due within three months of the date of acquisition.

c. Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are carried at cost determined by the moving-average cost method.

d. Investment Securities

All investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending on the management's intent, as available-for-sale securities and are
reported at fair value, which are principally comprised of investment securities, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes,
reported in a separate component of shareholders' equity.

Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average cost method. For other than temporary
declines in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.
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e. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Certain contributions in aid for construction of railways and other property are deducted directly
from the cost of the related assets.

Depreciation is computed on the declining-balance method over the estimated useful lives of the assets (see Note 4.b). Additional
depreciation is provided for Shinkansen cars based on kilometers traveled. The range of useful lives is principally from 3 to 60 years for
buildings and structures, from 10 to 20 years for rolling stock, and from 3 to 20 years for machinery and equipment.

Depreciation of certain railway ground structures except for Shinkansen railway ground facilities are accounted for by the replacement-
accounting method (see Note 4.a).

f. Long-lived Assets

In August 2002, the Business Accounting Council issued a Statement of Opinion, "Accounting for Impairment of Fixed Assets," and in
October 2003 the Accounting Standards Board of Japan ("ASB") issued ASB Guidance No. 6, "Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Impairment of Fixed Assets." These new pronouncements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2005 with early
adoption permitted for fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2004.

The Company adopted the new accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets as of April I, 2004. The Company reviews its long-
lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The
impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

The effect of adoption of the new accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets was to decrease income before income taxes for the
year ended March 31, 2005 by ¥1,005 million ($9,392 thousand).

g. Software Costs

Software costs are amortized by the straight-line method over S years.

h. Deferred Charges

Bond issuance costs are charged to income as incurred.

i. Allowance for Large Scale Renovation of the Shinkansen Infrastructure

Allowance for large scale renovation of the Shinkansen infrastructure is provided based on the Company's allowance plan authorized by the
Minister of Transport over 15 years from October 1, 2002 in accordance with the Nationwide Shinkansen Railway Development Law (see
Note 4.c).

j. Retirement and Pension Plans

The Company has an unfunded retirement plan covering substantially all employees. Under the plan, employees terminating their
employment are entitled to lump-sum severance payments based on their rate of pay at the time of termination, years of service and certain
other factors.

The service periods during which employees served JNR are regarded and treated as a part of their service periods with the Company.
Liabilities for severance payments related to such prior service periods were transferred from INR.

The liability for employees' retirement benefits is calculated based on the projected benefit obligations at the balance sheet date.

k. Leases

All leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under the Japanese accounting standards for leases, finance leases that are deemed to
transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized, while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as
operating lease transactions if certain "as if capitalized" information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee's financial statements.

1. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the non-consolidated statements of income and retained
earnings. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying
currently enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.

m. Appropriations of Retained Earnings

Appropriations of retained eamnings are reflected in the financial statements for the following year upon shareholders' approval.

n. Consumption Tax

Consumption tax is levied in Japan on the domestic sales of goods and services at the rate of 5%. Consumption tax is excluded from
revenues and expenses.

o. Per Share Information

Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted a new accounting standard for earnings per share of common stock issued by the ASB.
Under the new standard, basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders, which is more
precisely computed than under previous practices, by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period,
retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

Basic net income per share for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is computed in accordance with the new standard. The net
income available to common shareholders used in the computation for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were ¥90,337 million ($844,271 thousand),
¥66,702 million and ¥42,901 million, respectively. The average number of common shares used in the computation was 2,240,000 shares
for 2005, 2004 and 2003. Diluted net income per share is not presented in the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements as the
Company does not have any dilutive securities.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying non-consolidated statements of income and retained earnings are dividends
applicable to the respective years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

p. Related Party Transaction

Related party transactions other than with subsidiaries are not presented herein, as they are disclosed in the consolidated financial
statemnents of the Company and consolidated subsidiaries.




4. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

a. Effective April I, 2003, the Company adopted the straight-tine method of depreciation for the replacement assets of the Shinkansen
railway ground facilities, which, previously, had been depreciated by the replacement-accounting method. This change was made as those
assets became available to be managed in the same manner as other depreciable assets and to mitigate particular adverse effects of
replacement-accounting method on the occasion of price plunging.

The effects of this change were to increase operating costs by ¥9,691 million and to decrease operating income and income before income
taxes by ¥9,691 million for the year ended March 31, 2004.

Furthermore, the Company revised its estimate of the useful lives relating to aforementioned depreciable assets in the Shinkansen railway
ground facilities, such as rails, points, point switch movements and overhead contact lines. This change of estimate was made in order to
agree with the actual cycles of replacement.

The effects of this change were to increase operating costs by ¥4,265 million and to decrease operating income and income before income
taxes by ¥4,265 million for the year ended March 31, 2004.

b. Effective April [, 2004, the Company adopted the declining-balance method of depreciation for the buildings and structures of the
Shinkansen railway ground facilities, which had been previously depreciated by the straight-line method which had been different from
method adopted for conventional railway network since assuming Shinkansen railway ground facilities. This change was made to reinforce
the financial position and unify the method of Shinkansen railway ground facilities to that of conventional railway network in connection
with both commencement of Shinagawa station and drastic timetable revisions focusing on completion of improving Shinkansen trains to
operate at 270 km/hr.

The effects of this change were to increase depreciation by ¥39,817 million (8372,121 thousand) and to decrease operating income and
income before income taxes by approximately ¥39,817 million ($372,121 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2005.

c. Allowance for Large Scale Renovation of the Shinkansen Infrastructure

Pursuant to the Nationwide Shinkansen Railway Development Law, the Company was designated by the Minister of Transport as a
company necessary and appropriate to provide for allowance for large scale renovation of the Shinkansen infrastructure, where the
Company's allowance plan requires an aggregate amount of ¥500,000 million over 15 years from the date of authorization. Such
authorization was granted by the Minister of Transport on October 1, 2002. Accordingly, the Company provided ¥16,666 million for the
year ended March 31, 2003, which is included in operating costs and expenses (railway) in the accompanying non-consolidated statements
of income and retained earnings.

The effect of this change was to decrease operating income and income before income taxes by ¥16,666 million for the year ended March
31, 2003.

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Land ¥ 2,336,817 ¥2.339,111 $ 21,839,411
Buildings 469,371 456,331 4,386,644
Structures 3,383,047 3,377,493 31,617,261
Rolling stock 721,382 686,768 6,741,887
Machinery and equipment 376,481 371,681 3,518,525
Construction in progress 68,374 97,384 639,019
Total 7,355,474 7,328,770 68,742,747

Accumulated depreciation (2,679,500) (2,491,735) (25,042,065)
Net property and equipment ¥4,675973 ¥4837.034 $ 43,700,682

6. LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company recognizes all properties of the railway business as one asset group, which includes both the Shinkansen railway ground
facilities and conventional railway network.

The Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of the year ended March 31, 2005 and, as a result, recognized an impairment
loss of ¥1,005 million ($9,392 thousand) as other expense for lands in Aichi or other areas, which are included in construction in progress,
due to having been idle by freezing plans of increasing lines.

These carrying amounts were written down to the recoverable amounts, which were measured at memorandum value, due to the fact that
there were little opportunities to sell or divert those assets.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Secured 3.95% Bonds due 2016 ¥ 30,000 ¥ 30,000 $ 280,373
Secured 2.825% Bonds due 2017 50,000 50,000 467,289
Secured 2.18% Bonds due 2018 30,000 30,000 280,373
Secured 2.6% Bonds due 2020 50,000 50,000 467,289
Unsecured 2.39% Bonds due 2022 20,000 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 2.2% Bonds due 2022 20,000 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 1.49% Bonds due 2012 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 1.74% Bonds due 2022 20,000 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 1.42% Bonds due 2017 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 1.15% Bonds due 2022 25,000 25,000 233,644
Unsecured 1.31% Bonds due 2033 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 2.015% Bonds due 2023 10,000 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 2.20% Bonds due 2024 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 2.19% Bonds due 2019 10,000 93,457
Unsecured 1.875% Bonds due 2019 20,000 186,915
Unsecured 2.21% Bonds due 2024 10,000 93,457
Unsecured loans from Japanese banks and insurance companies,
with interest rates ranging from 0.78% to 6.6%, due 2005 to 2021 584,710 635,472 5,464,583
Total 919,710 920472 8,595,410

Less current maturities (89,974) (100,962) (840,878)
Long-term debt, less current maturities ¥ 829,735 ¥819510 87,754,532

The annual maturities of long-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2005, were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2006 ¥ 89,974 $ 840,878
2007 109,774 1,025,925
2008 106,684 997,046
2009 65,984 616,672
2010 93,794 876,579
Thereafter 453,496 4,238,310

Total ¥919,710 $8595410

The Company has been released from the debt repayment obligation for a portion of the bonds issued by depositing equivalent assets under
debt assumption agreements with financial institutions and accounts for all outstanding bonds covered by these agreements as contingent
liabilities. The balance of bonds released from their debt repayment obligation amounted to ¥20,000 million ($186,915 thousand) as of
March 31, 2005 (see Note 13).

All assets of the Company were pledged for the above secured bonds of ¥180,000 million ($1,682,242 thousand), including aforementioned
off-balanced bonds of ¥20,000 million ($186,915 thousand), as an enterprise mortgage, which gives the holder thereof a security interest in
all assets junior to that of other present or future secured creditors, but senior to that of general creditors.




8. LONG-TERM PAYABLES
Long-term payables as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Long-term payables incurred for purchase of
the Shinkansen railway ground facilities:
With average interest rate of 4.50% (2005) and 4.57% (2004),
due semiannually through 2017 ¥ 1,769,994 ¥1,961,318 $ 16,542,000
With a fixed interest rate of 6.35%, due semiannually through 2017 382,323 465,722 3,573,112
With a fixed interest rate of 6.55%, due semiannually through 2051 583,376 585,290 5,452,112
Other 10,414 10,694 97,336
Total 2,746,109 3,023,026 25,664,560
Less current maturities (199,345) (194,635) (1,863,037)
Long-term payables, less current maturities ¥ 2,546,763 ¥ 2,82839] $ 23,801,523

Based on debt assumption agreements with financial institutions and a special purpose entity, the Company has transferred the debt
repayment obligation for certain long-term payables to such financial institutions and special purpose entity and provided such financiai
institutions and special purpose entity with Japanese national government bonds or cash for the payment of principal and interest on the
long-term payables. As a result of such transactions, the balance of long-term payables derecognized amounted to ¥311,125 million
(32,907,710 thousand) and ¥265,335 million as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and the related loss on debt assumption
amounted to ¥29,789 million ($278,401 thousand) and ¥17,745 million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively (see
Note 13).

The annual maturities of long-term payables as of March 31, 2005, were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2006 ¥ 199,345 $ 1,863,037
2007 187,038 1,748,018
2008 116,636 1,090,056
2009 122,806 1,147,719
2010 128,742 1,203,196
Thereafter 1,991,540 18,612,534

Total ¥ 2,746,109 $25,664.560

Interest expense on aforementioned long-term payables amounted to ¥152,338 million ($1,423,719 thousand), ¥166,148 million and
¥179,615 million for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

9. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Code.

The Code requires that all shares of common stock are recorded with no par value and at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is
required to be recorded as common stock and the remaining net proceeds as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus.
The Code permits Japanese companies, upon approval of the Board of Directors. to issue shares to existing shareholders without
consideration as a stock split. Such issuance of shares generally does not give rise to changes within the shareholders’ accounts.

The Code also provides that an amount at least equal to 10% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and certain other appropriations of
retained earnings associated with cash outlays applicable to each period shall be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained
earnings) until such reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of common stock. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and
legal reserve that exceeds 25% of the common stock may be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders. In addition, the Code
permits the transfer of a portion of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve to the common stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.
The Code allows Japanese companies to repurchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of
Directors. The repurchased amount of treasury stock cannot exceed the amount available for future dividend plus the amount of common
stock, additional paid-in capital or legal reserve to be reduced in the case where such reduction was resolved at the shareholders meeting.

In addition to the provision that requires an appropriation for a legal reserve in connection with the cash payment, the Code imposes certain
limitations on the amount of retained earnings available for dividends. The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under the
Code was ¥647,780 million ($6,054,018 thousand) as of March 31, 2003, based on the amount recorded in the Company's general books of
account.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations imposed by the
Code.
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10. INCOME TAXES

The Company is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in normal effective statutory tax rates

of approximately 40% and 42% for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On March 31, 2003, a tax reform law concerning enterprise tax was enacted in Japan which changed the normal effective statutory tax rate
from approximately 42% to 40%, effective for years beginning on or after April 1, 2004. The deferred tax assets and liabilities which will
be realized on or after April 1, 2004 are measured at the effective tax rate of 40% as of March 31, 2004,
The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2005 and 2004, are as

follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Deferred tax assets:

Liabilities for employees' retirement benefits ¥ 83,238 ¥ 81,019 $ 777,925
Depreciation 41,111 37,355 384,214
Software 11,071 7.589 103,467
Railway usage charges 8,767 9,159 81,934
Accrued bonuses 7,693 7,580 71,897
Other 27,346 26,410 255,600
Total 179,229 169,116 1,675,037
Less valuation allowance (14,764) 14,170y (137,991)
Deferred tax assets 164,464 154,945 1,537,046

Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 7,231 7,223 67,589
Property and equipment 3,876 3,876 36,224
Deferred tax liabilities 11,108 11,099 103,813
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 153,356 ¥ 143,845 81,433,233

Since the difference between normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate was not significant, the reconciliation was

not presented for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004.




11. LEASES

The Company leases certain assets relating to railway business and other business. Total lease payments under finance lease arrangements
that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the Company were ¥747 million ($6,981 thousand) and ¥1,748 million for the years
ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Pro forma information of leased property such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, obligations under finance lease, depreciation
expense and interest expense of finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an "as if capitalized"
basis for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Raiway Business Other Business Railway Business Other Business Railway Business Other Business
Property Property  Total Property Property  Total Property Property  Total
Acquisition cost ¥1,684 ¥225 Y1910 ¥2,137 ¥279 ¥2417 $ 15,738 $2,112 $17,850
Accumulated depreciation 746 144 890 1,055 160 1,216 6,972 1,346 8,318
Net leased property ¥ 938 ¥81 Y1020 ¥1,082 ¥119 ¥1201 3 8,766 3766 39,532

Obligations under finance leases :

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥ 446 ¥508 $ 4,168
Due after one year 573 692 5,364
Total ¥ 1,620 ¥ 1,201 39,532

The amount of acquisition cost and obligations under finance leases includes the imputed interest expense portion.
Depreciation expense, which is not reflected in the accompanying non-consolidated statements of income and retained earnings, computed
by the straight-line method was ¥747 million ($6,981 thousand) and ¥1.748 million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004,

respectively.
The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases at March 31, 2005 and 2004 are due as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥ 854 ¥ 854 $ 7,981
Due after one year 6,123 6,977 57,224
Total ¥ 6,977 ¥ 7832 $ 65,205
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with subsidiaries of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Operating Operating Costs Non-operating
Revenue and Expenses Transactions
2005
Subsidiaries ¥ 15,825 ¥ 73,239 ¥ 13,790
2004
Subsidiaries 16,432 66,542 22,990
2003
Subsidiaries 16,878 62,847 18,756
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Operating Operating Costs Non-operating
Revenue and Expenses Transactions
2005
Subsidiaries $ 147,897 $ 684,476 $ 128,878

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries of the Company as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

2005 2004
Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Due from subsidiaries ¥7,439 ¥7,932 ¥6,592 ¥ 3,574
Due to subsidiaries 77,939 3,150 70,351 3,150

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2005
Current  Non-current
Due from subsidiaries $69,523 $ 74,130
Due to subsidiaries 728,401 29,439

13. CONTINGENCIES

The Company has joint and several obligations with Railway Technical Research Institute to make payments on long-term borrowings of
¥37,516 million (350,616 thousand) by the Institute as of March 31, 2003, the proceeds of which are being used for the enhancement of
technology development for the Maglev system.

As discussed in Notes 7 and 8, based on debt assumption agreements with the financial institutions and the special purpose entity, the
Company has transferred the debt repayment obligation for certain bonds and long-term payables to such financial institutions and special
purpose entity. At March 31, 2005, the Company had contingent obligations of ¥20,000 million ($186,915 thousand) for the bonds and of
¥311,125 million (32,907,710 thousand) for long-term payables, respectively.

The Company also had contingent liabilities for guarantees of the Joans of a subsidiary amounting to ¥66,901 million ($625,242 thousand)
at March 31, 2005.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The following appropriations of retained earnings at March 31, 2005 were approved at the Company's shareholders meeting held on June
23, 2005:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥3,000 (328.04) per share ¥6,720 $ 62,803
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 284 2,654
Total ¥ 7,004 $65,457




Independent Auditors’ Report

Tohmatsu & Co.

MS Shibaura Building

13-23, Shibaura 4-chome,
Minato-ku. Tokyo 108-8530, Japan

Tel: +81-3-3457-7321
Fax:+81-3-3769-8508
www.tohmatsu.co.jp

To the Board of Directors of

Central Japan Railway Company:

We have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets of Central
Japan Railway Company and
consolidated subsidiaries as of March
31, 2005 and 2004, and the related
consolidated statements of income and
retained earnings, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period
ended March 31, 2005, and the
accompanying non-consolidated
balance sheets of Central Japan
Railway Company as of March 31,
2005 and 2004, and the related non-
consolidated statements of income and
retained earnings for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31,
2005. all expressed in Japanese yen.
These consolidated and non-
consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's
management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these
consolidated and non-consolidated
financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in Japan. Those
standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the
consolidated and non-consolidated
financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated and
non-consolidated financial statements.

An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the
overall consolidated and non-
consolidated financial statement
presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion,

(1) The consolidated financial
statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial
position of Central Japan Railway
Company and consolidated
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005
and 2004, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March
31, 2005, in conformity with
accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

{2) The non-consolidated financial
statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of
Central Japan Railway Company as
of March 31, 2005 and 2004. and
the results of its operations for
each of the three years in the
period ended March 31, 2005, in
conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in
Japan.

Lol Toveho. ToRoumeTin

June 23, 2005

Deleitte
Touehe
Tehmatsy

As discussed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements and
Note 4 to the non-consolidated
financial statements, the Company
changed its method of accounting for
depreciation for the buildings and
structures of Shinkansen railway
ground facilities as of April 1, 2004,
depreciation for the replacement
assets of Shinkansen railway ground
facilities as of April 1, 2003, and the
accounting for allowance for large
scale renovation of the Shinkansen
infrastructures as of October 1, 2002.

Our audits also comprehended the
translation of Japanese yen amounts
into U.S. dollar amounts and. in our
opinion, such translation has been
made in conformity with the basis
stated in Note 2 of the consclidated
financial statements and the non-
consolidated financial statements.
Such US. dollar amounts are
presented solely for the convenience
of readers outside Japan.
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Appendix 1—Operating Environment

W /nternational Comparison in Fundamentals
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BJR Central's Market Area

OPercentage of Japan as a Whole

JR Central's Market Area other
GDP ;
(nominal) 63.4% 36.6%
(FY2002.3) I
Population
{As of the end of 88.4% 41.6%
March 2004} .
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Note: JR Central’s market area includes the following prefectures:
Tokyo, Kanagawa, Chiba, Saitama, Ibaraki, Shizuoka, Yamanashi,
Nagano, Aichi, Mie, Gifu, Shiga, Osaka, Kyoto, Hyogo, Nara

Bl Comparison with Airline Transportation

OPopulation Density (As of the end of March 2004)

Japan
(as a whole) 100(Base)
JR Central's 5
Market Area 248

100 200

Sources: Population-Residential Register (Data: End of March 2004),
Local Administrative Bureau, Ministry of Public Management,
Home Affairs, Posts and Telecommunications
GDP-Annual Report on Prefectural Accounts {Data: FY2002.3),
Economic and Social Research Institute, Cabinet Office

Oservices (As of August 2005)
Osaka Okayama Hiroshima Fukuoka
Between Tokyo and .. (552.6 k) (732.9 km) (894.2 km) (1,174.9 km)
Shinkansen 2 hr 30 min 3 hr 16 min 3 hr51 min 4 hr 58 min
Travel Time
Airlines 1 hr (About 2 hr 30 min) 1 hr 10min (About 3hr) 1 hr 15 min (About 3 hr 10 min) 1 hr 30 min (About 2 hr 40 min)
Departures Shinkansen 228 117 69 45
er da L
per aay Airlines 94 18 30 90
Notes: 1. Travel time is in case of the fastest service
2. Travel times in parentheses include transfer and access times from airports to city centers
OMiarket Share
4+— JR Central >« JRWest ——»
Tokyo Nagoya Osaka Okayama Hiroshima Fukuoka
| i | ! |
T T T T 1
Tokyo Area~
Nagoya Area
60 thousand passengers Apprex. 100%
per day
1
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Osaka Area '
114 thousand passengers 81% ‘\ 19%
per day '
|
|
Tokyo Area~
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7 thousand passengers —
per day 57% 43%
Tokyo Area~
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o dy T PRssEEerS 7% 53% _ -
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per day R,
Railway o Airlines

Notes: 1. Market share is the percentage of all railway and airline services based on the inter-prefectural data of the inter-Regional Passenger
Mobility Survey (FY2004.3), published by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and Transport

Railway market share of FY2005.3 is as follows according to our own estimate.
2. Tokyo Area: Tokyo, Kanagawa, Chiba, Saitama. Ibaraki

Nagoya Area: Aichi, Mie, Gifu

Tokyo Area~Nagoya Area:100% Tokyo Area~Osaka Area:80%
Osaka Area: Osaka, Kyoto, Hyogo, Nara
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Appendix 2 —International Railway Comparison’

CRoute Length
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Abbreviations: JR Central: Central Japan Railway Company
JR East: East Japan Railway Company
JR West: West Japan Railway Company

SNCF: Société Nationale des Chemins de fer Frangais (French National Railways)

DB AG: Deutsche Bahn AG {German Railways)
TOCs: Train Operating Companies
Amtrak: National Railroad Passenger Corporation
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des Chemins de fer Railroad Statistics Annual Report, Ministry of Land,
Infrastructure and Transport, Japan Asset securities reports
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Appendix 3—Financial Comparison of Three JR Companies (FY 2005.3)
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Appendix 4—Stock Information
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B Major Shareholders (As of March 31, 2005)

Number of shares held Percentage of total issued shares
JNR Settlement Headquarters of the Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology Agency 886,071 39.56%
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. 111,978 5.00%
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (UFJ Bank, Limited Retirement Benefit Trust Account) 71,250 3.18%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 69,723 3.11%
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 64,308 2.87%
JR Central Employee Shareholding Association 41,776 1.87%
Nippon Life Insurance Company 41,600 1.86%
Toyota Motor Corporation 40,000 1.79%
The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company 34,000 1.52%
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. 30,784 1.37%
Total 1,391,480 62.12%

In July 2005, the JNR Settlement Headguarters of the Japan Railway Construction, Transport and Technology Agency sold 600,000 shares in JR Central.
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